
Christopher T. Sununu

Governor

STATE OF NEW HAMPS«RE20 pri 4:03 RCUD
Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301-3834

Telephone: (603) 271-2155
Fax:(603) 271-2615

Division of Planning

Division of Energy

www.nh.gov/osi

November 30, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

The Office of Strategic Initiatives (OS!) respectfully requests authorization to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. (VC #177198), Manchester, NH, in the amount of
$37,220.52 for the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program, effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval through September 30, 2022. 100% Other Funds (NH DHHS).

Funding is available in the account as follows, with the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State
Fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified. Funding for FY 2021, FY 2022, and FY 2023 is
contingent upon continuing appropriation and availability of funds.

FY202I FY 2022 FY 2023

Office of Energv & Planning. Fuel Assistance

01-02-02-024010-77050000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

$13,957.32 $18,610.76 $4,652.44

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies with
the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program. The Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program makes
home energy more affordable for households with members who are sixty years of age or older, who are
experiencing a home energy hardship, and who are not eligible for the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) under the current income limits. The Community Action Agencies determine eligibility for the Fuel
Assistance Program and are able to efficiently distribute these funds to households in need that are not eligible for
that program.

A federal grant under the Older Americans Act funds (Title IIIB) awarded to the New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services (NH DHHS) Division of Elderly and Adult Services provides funding for the Senior
Energy Assistance Services Program. A Memorandum of Understanding for this program was previously
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on February 20, 2019, item #48.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfullysubmitted,

1 ired Chicoine

Director

yC/EPS

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
G&C I Z'i 6/2020



FORM NUMBER. P-3,7 (version,12/ll?201'9)

Notice: This agreement-and,ail of its artaclments s^irbccbme.public up6h;submiss^^^^ to. GoVcmor
•^wutiye (^.uncil for approve, ,Any information that is private^ confidential or proprietary must
bc.clearly.ideritified to 'the agency and agreed to;in writing prior to'signing the contract:

AGREEMENT
Thc;Stale pfNc.w Hampshire,and theGontractbr hcreby.rautually.agree as follows:

GENERAL provisions;

1: IDENTIFieATION.

1.1 State Agency Naihe
Officebf Stratcgidlnitiatives

1.2 State Agency Address
dOTPlisasant Sdreet, Johnson Hall
Concor<^ New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Goritractor Name.

^Southern New Hampsbire.Scrviccs, Ihc;.
1.4 Contractor Address'

.40'Pine Street.'ManchMter,;N^

'1.5 Contractor Phone
,Number

(603)668-8010

1.6 Account Niunber

01 -02-02-024010-77050000-

074^500587

02SEAS21/22y23

1.7 Completion Date
September 30,2022

1.8 Pricc.Limitatioh

$37,-220:52

1.9 Contractmg:Officer4forState:Agency
Eilecn:Smiglowsld, Fu(ir Assistance Program Administrator

1.10 'State Agency Telephone Number
'(603X.27l-2i5^^^^

l.j.l CompciorSignature

i|-10

1,12 :Narae>ridjTiOe cfCohtractor Signatory
R^hGlp.ut^.eri Ete'puty Dirw

1;,^ Smfe.-A^ncjl^ignature; 1.14 Naihe.and Title of Slate, Agency Signatory

slaved c, lj\r ec4ot^
lI/5 Approval by the N.H. p.cpaiVnCTt of A'diiuhisira Divirion.of P,creonnel (if.applicahle)' /

1  By: Director, Oh:

1.16_ Approval by the. AttomeyGcncraKOForin, Substance and Execution) (i/.applipable). P

1.17 .Approyal'by the Gbverhdrand Exccutive Council

G&C Item number: G&G Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire,,acting :tMrough?the agency identified in block-1.1
("State"), engages- cdntfactor identified in.^ block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Gohtracior shall perform, the
^ork or isaJe;bf;gbbds, ohbpth,;idehtified..and mpre particularly
descfibed ih'the attached EXHIBIT. B which is incorporated
,hereih.by reference {"Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/CQMPLETION OF SERVICES:
;.3,1 iNptyhAstahdihg any pfpyisibh; of'this: Agi^ment to the
cpptr^; and. subject to 'the -apprbv^l .of the Governor .and
Executive Council pf the ,State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
thisA^emeht, and, all,bbli^tibrisbfthe paifieshefeundcr, shall
become efiec'tiye ori 'th'e date the, Goycrnbr and Executive
Gouncil apprpye, tW^ ^ .indicated, in block 1.17,
unlcss^nbusuch approval isjequired,,iri whm^
shall becbme .efFectiye on dt'e date" the Agfeemehi-is signed,by
die State Agency as shp>^ iiii',blpck;l,.13 ("Effective Dale"):

■3.-2 If the'' Cpntrectpr cp'mmehces; the Services prior to, the,
,Effecfiyepatc,ail:,Si^iirespeifpm
Ad. Effectiye Date shall .be 'perfpniied at ,Ae sole risk of the'
GonAactbr, ahd..m the eyentlhat.tluV Agfw^
effectiyei, the; Stale 'shall,'haye; hp', liability to the Contractor,
includihg* wthput limitation',, any pbligatibh to, pay the;
Contraptpr" /or ^y' costs, mcuired 'pf Services perfonned.
Cqnda.ctpr must'cb.m all Servic.es,\by Ae .Gbmpletibn Date
^eci fied'in bibc k/v7.

4. GpNDITIONA^^^
Nptwthstahdihgi My. prpyisipn of jKis A^ement" to, the
contrary,^ all, pbiigalipns of' thc; Slatp; hereiind^, .including,
•wiihput [imitatjon.^'Ae contmuance bf payrnehts hereiinder; arC;
cbntiiigeptvppn the-ayaijability and cbntinued.-approp'riatibn.bf
funds affected: by-any state: or, fcd.cral legislative of executive;
action' thatj .leduces; plimiriates o.r btherw'^ rabdifies Ae;
apprppriatiph or ayaiiabilily'pf fondiri this .Agfwmcht;.and,
the Scope; fprSeryi.c« pro,\dded:.ih,KQIIB^ B^ iji ,vyKblc;.pf5ih.
part, in; hp eventyshall. the-State ;l>e iiabld /of any 'payrncfits
hereunder in^excess of such ay^lable approp^ f^ds"; . Iti the
event of a; reduction pr terrnination Pf-app.fppriated Ae
State shaUfhayeiAe^nghtMp viritlAoId'paymenf ^ch,;ft}hds
become-ayailable; if cyer.Jand-shallihAye the right tp^reduc.e 'of
terminate the'^Seryices undisr'Ais.Agreemeht.ir^eA^ upon
giving the-iGpnlractor.nptibe-pf ^ch'reduction or teirninatipn.
-The State shall"npt:be''requifeditp; trahsfer 'funds ffbra My ptHef
accountVor source to the Account'.id.entified 'in^bjb^ 1;6 in" the
event fimds intthat.Account-are reduced or unavailable.

5; CONTRAGt PRiCE^JUGE LIM
'PAYMENT:
5M The contract pricc,.meihod of,paymeiit, and terms o f payment
are identified and. more particuiarly'describ^ in ^HlBlT'C
which is incorporated-herein ,by. reference;.

.■5;2 The.payment by'ihc:State pf the cpiitract-price shali be .ihe
only and thc;complete:reimburseraent:to'thc Contractor fbr'ali
:expenses, of .whatever nature incuripd-by the Contractor mithe
performance,hereof, and- shall be Ae-'only and the complete

compensation to Ac .Contractor for Ae .Services. The:S.tate shaif
have no, liability, to the JCbntrac'tor oAer Aan.Ae contract pijcc;
5.3 The Siatesreserves the right: to offset froin any amounts:
oiherwise;payable;'to the Contractor under this Agreement Aose
liquidated, amounts^ required, or-permitted by N.H.. RSA- 80:7
throughiRSA;80:7.-cor.any other provision of law.
5.4 NbtwiAstanding. any provision in. this Agreement to the
con'traiy, andmotwiihstandihg unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall Ae total.of all payments auiAorized, or actuallymade
hereunder,-exceed AciPrice.Limitation-set forth.ih block 1.8;

6. compliance BY CONTRAGTOR'VVaTH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
opportunity:,
6.1 In iconnection wiA, Ae performance of the Services, Ae
Contractor shall comply wiA-all applicable'statutes, laws,
regulations; and orders of federal, state,, county or. municipal
auAorities'which-irnpose any-'obligation or duty'upon Ac
Contractor, including,'butmot limited to, civil fights and equal
cmploymcnt.opportunity laws.. In addition; if Ais.Agreement is
funded'ih any part by.moriies of.the.rUnited StateSj AeCbntractor
shairvCbmply-wiA;all fedefal'cxecutive;orders, ruies.-regulations
ahd staAtes,:and;AyiA any rules, regulations and guidelines as Ac
State bf Ae United States i^ue to, uiiplement';Aese regulations.
The C.bhtfactb'r shall al^:c6mply with all.applicable:ihteHectual
pfopcrtylaws.
6.2 Dufihg the^terih pf'thisA'greement, Ae Contractor shall'.not
discfimma'tc against^,emplbyees or ;applicants for'emplbymeni
b.ccauiwpf face, color,,fe^ crced;.age, sex, handicap; sexual
brieritatibn, of riatibnal.drigimatid'will takc.affirmative actibn.to
prcyrat;such.d.iscfiimhatidn.
6.3, TheCpbtfactof peririitTAe State or UnitcdiStates

;ac.cess:tb Myipf.thc.Cdntfacib records.andaccouritsTor
Appui^W'bfascefta^ with all rules, regulations
and pfdcrs, and: Ac'; Myeiiaht^, terms'and conditions'of this
.Agreement.

7;, PERSONNEL. _
'7.1, The GonlTacAfsKair^^^ pwn.expcnse proyidc.all personnel,
ifieciess.^ tpVpcrfpfmAe^Sefyices: The" Contractor warrants that
all :perebhiici: .engaged ;ih. Ac Services shall be qualified /o,
peifpfm the Sefyices, md, shall bie pfopefly licensed, and
oAq^sc auApri^ltp d6;so;un^ applicable laws.
7.2 Uhiess^biheriyi^ auAbmcd in vmtihg, during, Ae term of
Ais A^eemeriU.'ahd fdr-'^a^^^ ofrsix- (6) months after Ae
6o'rapJetibn,Datc;m;bio;ck 1.7, Ap nbt;hife;:and,
;^hali :npt;^pefmit 'imy ■subcpntractof or other per^n, .firm or
cbipofationr^th whom it:;is:.ehgaged m.'a cbmbmcd ̂ effoftito
pcffbim.Ae'.Se!yices tphifc;,.;M is a.Staie employee
;pr official; who is- niatefi.aliy ihyoiyed in Ae pfbcufemcht,.
admimslfatipn. of. iperfqimance of; Ais Agreement. This-
prbvisiphsjjail.si^iyetermmatibnbfthis'A^
."7.3: The C.onj:rac.ting'Offibef ;s{^cified-m block 1.9, or his of her
;succes^f, shal.tbe the Slate,'s .repfe^ritative; In. Ae cvenuof any
dispute- cpnceniihg; the; mtcfpfetatioh bf this Agreerhen't; Ae-
Contracting Officer's decU^^^ for the State.
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8. EVENT OF default/remedies.
8.1 Any one or more of the-ifdlibwing acts'or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute:an event of defauli.hereunder ("Event
of Default-");

8.1.1 failure,'to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to;submitiany report required hereundcr, and/or
8.1.3;failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement
8^2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
takeany one, or.more, or all,of"lhc:fo!lo.\ving actions:
8!2.1 giyeilhc Contractor a written notice specifying the.Event of
Default and rcquirir^;it to'bc remedied within,,in the absence of
a greater oHesser specificatioo'df time,' thirty (30) days from-the
date of the notice; ahd if lhelEvcnl ofDefauit is not .timcly cured,.
tcrmihate.this Agreement,effcctive:two (2).days afier.giving.the
Cdhtractof nolice;6T^tenhihatidn;'
,8.2.2 give the;Cohtractbra,written notice specifying tfae.Evcnt of
[Default and suspe.iidihg >all -payments .to. be^ made' under this.
Agrecraeht arid.^orderihg.'that jlhe portion oflthe contract-price
which wpiild,- oihcfSvisc accrue to the Contractor durii^, the
"period,fnDrh the date.-pf such notice.untiljsuch time as-thc.State
ddcmiines thatithe Cbntfactor has cured the Event .of Default,

shall,neyef [be paid.to thc.C.dntractor;
8.2[3 give the Cphiractore'writteh notice specifying the Event of
Dcfault'and off against My ,plher:6bligatiohs the-State may
owe tp thc^Cohtractdf ahy.dai^cs the'Sttte.suffers by reason of.
anyEveht pf Dcfaul.t; ai^bf
8-2'.4 giye'thc Contractor a writteh hptice specifying the Event of
Default; tfeat^ ^e A^ecmeht. ,as" breached, [terminate the.
Agreemeht.ahd puraueVan its.remedies at law.or'in equity, .or
both;

8.3[i Np f^Iufe by"the State'to [enforce, any pfoyisiphS'hercof after
any Event pfpefaultshaU.lbc de waiycf of its rights with
regard to that Event of any sub'^quent Event'of
Default- No expr^ failufc['tP.cnf6rc^^
be deemed fl-'Nv^iver pf tbe'.rigHt of the State to.chfofce each and
all ;9rthe provisidns/herrof'lip^ any fu^'criof. other Event of
DefauU_ph\the pari.pf ̂

9;,TERMINATiGN,
9.1 NopMthstMding p^^ph .'8, the State .may,, at its' sole
-di^retiph, termipate;the;Agreem^ in whole or
in:part,'By"thirty (30) ̂ ys ̂iteh.hoUce to' die Cdhiractor-ihat
the State[.is excrcisihg its pptiph tp';teiiminate;the' Agiw'ment.
9.2 In th,e.:eyent'pf. M''w^ of this A^cmcnt for
tmy 'reaOTn other than the ppnipietion pf 'the Sciyiccs, [the
eontractpr sh^l; rat- die State's 'discfciibh, deliver to the
Gontracti'ng'Officcr, not later th^.fifteen;(15) days after the date
of lerminati'pn, a report. ("Tcririihatipn [Report") describing; in
detail-all Semces perfpnnpj^Tand; the cphtt?ct;price'earned, to.
and incjuding'the'date o^^ The fom; subject friatteV,
■contenti-and .humbertof.'cppies of the Jerminatipn Report shall
be idenUcal to those of any.Flhal Report .described in theattached
^HIBIT B; In addition, atuhe State Cpntraci.or
shall, within-15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit ,tp the State a Tnihsitipri .Plan for? scivices,' under die
Agrei^ent.

10. DATA/ACCESS/eGNFiDENTIALITY/
PRESERYATiG
10.1 As used in this Agrccraent,-A'c word."data" shall m
information and things developed or phtained during the
performance of, or acquired p^deyelpped by reasdh[df, this.
Agreement,[including, but-not reports',
files, formulae, surveys, maps, cIm^, sound recordings; video
recordings, pictorial rcproductipt^, drawings, analyses; graphic
representations; computer programs, computer, printouts, notes;
letters, memoranda, papersj-.and.dPcumchts- ali[ whether
finished or unfinishcd[-
10.-2 AU data and any properfywhich has been received frpm
the:State or purchased'wilh funds prPvided'.fPr that'purt>psc
under this-Agrecmcnt,.shall bethe prpperfy of the Slate,'and.
shall be returned to the.Slate upondcma.nd or upon lerminatidn
of this Agreement for. any.reason.
10.3 Gonfidcnualify.'of data shall be gpyemcd by N.Hr RSA.
ch^ter 91-A or other.existing lawv Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONtRAiGTOR'S'RELAtlpN TP THE S In the
peiformance-of'lhis. Agreement the.Cpntracldr is in .all respects
an independent, contractor, and is incither' an agent npr an
employee^of, the State: Neither, the-Contractor nor any ofils
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
[bind the Stale or;receive:any benefits, workers' compensaUpP pr
other emoluments provided by the-State to its erapipyccs.

.12. ASSIGIVMENT/DELECATION/SUBGONTRACTS^
12.1, Thc.Coniractor shall not.assign> or otherwise transftt- any

:interest'in this Agreement-without the prior written nplice;-wHich
shall bc-;provided to ihc'State.at least fiffeen.(15) days prior to
the assignment; and a-writtcn consent of thc Slate. For puipo^
of. this paragraph, a- Change of Control shdl constimre
assignmeriL "Chaise of Control'^ 'means (a) mei^er,r
consolidation, or a.transaction.or series'df related transactions in
which a ithird party, together, wth its affiliates, becomes' the
direct-or indirect owner-of fiffy. perccnt-(50%)ror rhore of 'the
votihgHsharcs or similar equity-interests;, or combined voting-;
po.wcf of the Conlractor„or:(bj the.salcrof all or.substantially all
of the ̂ scts.of the C6ntractor[
12[2; None; of the Services -shall- be subcontracted', by (he
Cdhtractor wilhout:prior writienndtice.and consent oflhcStatc:
.The'State is entiiled'to copies ofall-subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shaJl.not be;bound by-any provisions contained
in a.subcdntrac'Cor an assignment agreement to which it isinot a
paify.

13,; INDEMNIFICATION- Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the•Cohtfacidrshall indemnify-and[hoId harmless the State, its
officers and .employees,/from[ and gainst any and all claims,
liabilities and costs fo'r any'personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infririgemehYpr oiber.claims asserted against
the State, its officers .or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise .out of) "the acts or omission of "the
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CoQtractor,, or subcontractors, ̂including but-not limited.-to the
negligeiicc, reckless or, iiilentional conduct.. The State.shall not'
be liable for any costs incurred byihelContractor arising under
this pariagraph.l 3; Notwit^tanding the foregoingi-nothing herein
contaihed.shall be decmedib constitute a waiver-ofthe sovereign
immunity of the State, which iminunity i.s'hcreby reserved to the
Stale. This: covenant in para^ph ,13 shall survive tlie
lerminatipii of,this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contiactbr ^11, at its. sole expense, obtain and
continuously rbmiitain ,iri force, and shall .require any
subcoritractbr;bf assignee to obtain and -maintainiin force, the
following ihsui^cc:
14.1.1 cOTTuherciargeneral liabilityihsura'nce agaihsfall claims
.of bodilyunjiiry, death" of, property damage, in amounts'of not
less than i$l,Opj},pOOipe^oc;cujTehcc and J2;000,000 aggregate
bf'exce^; and
14.1.2 sijepial-cause of loss coverage form covering all property
^bject tp subiMragraph;10.2,hcrein,lh an,,arapuni,not.less^lhan
8,0"^, 6f;the;wlible;repl^ of the property..
l,4.2..Tiie;p61icies described in subparajp^aph,14.1 herein shall be,
pln:p6Ucy fpfins and.ehdpreemehtsappro.vcd.for use;in thc.State
of New Harapshifc'by ttie',N:H:,,Depaftmehlrof Irisurah and
issued by iitsiircrs licehsed i.n'the State of,Ne.w,H^pshlfe.
14.3 'The Gqntfactor shall ifomish to :the Cbhtracting OfScer
idcntificd.ih blpck1.p,.6nlusdTher; successor,,"aco^^
irisufaihcc' ,fof; all insurance; feqiiifed imdcf this .Agfccmeht.
GPntractpnshall aJsp:fiufiishl6,the;Cphtracting;Pfficer'idcntified
ih'blpck L9i or h^ ot hefvsucccssprt ccrtificat©Cs)rbf,insurance
for all rene^(s).6fii^.rance'reqtnfed under,,this, A^ee^^ no
later than ten (10) days,'prior tq; the expiration date of each
insurance jjolicy.- The' b,cftificate{s) ;pf ihsufance arid any
renewals thereofshall be attached,,Md we ihcdrt»
reference.-.

is! WOR^RS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing,this'agree[rient, th^ Cohlractdf a^ees,iCcrtifies
Md-wajtantsl^t'^e'Conira is iAcbnipliahce;wth or exempt

thc,requkeraen,ts;bf I^A chapter 28.1 ̂ A ("jVohkers'
Gdmpe^Kdlion'').
15.'2 To the extent the Gohttactof is subjw Iblhelrepuirethehts
of, N.H. RSA; chapter .281'-Ai Cphfractpf ̂ alj. ̂intain, and
require: any subcontractpr or assignee; to, secure and^,maintain,
payment df -Wpricere' .Gpmpensatibn in. rcbhriectibn with
activities which the perepn propoMS tb:un^ to this
AgreemcnL- The CbnMctor^airftif^ Gonti^ctmg Officer
idcntifiedin block, l.;9i,br his p^her,succ«sbr,;'pfopfofWb^^
Gompensaiion in Ac mannCT-described chapter
281-A and any appUcabjc {rCTewali;^). thereof; which shall be
attached and-arc "incorporated herein-by refers The.State,
shall not be''responsible for payment of ,^y Wooers.'
Compensation premiums or: for un/ pth'er claim pr'-bchefit for
Gontractor, or any subcpntt^ctor or employee pf Gpntractpr,,
which might'arise under applicable State-of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws tn coimectibn with tlic
performance of.the Services under'this Agj^meht;

16. NOTICE. Any notice bya j^y hereto loa the other party-
shall be'dccmcd.to have bccn^chily delivcrcddf givcn at the time
of mailing by certified niail, postage'prepaid,.in,a United .S^tes
Post Office addressed-to the parties at the addresses gWenJh
blocks i.2.and 1.4,herein.

17.-AMEND1V1ENT. This Agreem.eht maybe amehded,,.\^iyed
or discharged only, by an instrument in writing, signed by the
parties hereto and only after, approval of such araendtticnt;
-waiver ordischarge by the Goventor and ExecutiveCouncil of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant'to Statelaw, rulebrpolicy.

18; CHOICE OF LAW AND FiORUM.-This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and,'construedln\accordance-wiih-the
laws of,.thc State of New;Hampshire; and- ils binding upon
inures to the benefit ofthe partiesiand theif respective successors
and assigns. The wording used ih.this Agreement is thc wordibg
choscn.by the parties to express^thcmmutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall bCrapplied-agaihsl or in favor of any party;
Anyactionstarising out, of.this.-Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superibr-'Courtvwbich shali have
exclusive jurisdiciion.thereof.

;19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In''the event' of- a conflict

between.the terras.of lhis P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/br aiiachmcnls;and'.amendment thereof, the terras of the
'P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) sfialfcontrol.

20. THIRD .PARTIES; The parties hereto do not .intend to
benefit any third parties and' -this' A^emcnt shall not' be
conistnj'ed. tb;.cohfer any ̂ ch benefit.

21. .HEADIN.GS. The, headings ithroughout the Agreement, are
for .reference pu^bses only;'and the-'words'^containcd'thcrcin.
shall, in:ho way.be'held lb explain, modify; amplify, or aid.in.thc'
ihtcfpretatioh, cbnstnictidh or-fncariihg ofthe provisions of-this
Agreement.

221 SPECIAL PROVISIONS.. Additional or. modifying-
pfbyisibnsisct.forth ih.lhc attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

•231 SEVERABILITV. ;Ih.the event any of the provisions of this
Agreemehttare held.by a-bqurt df'cbmpetcnt,jurisdiction lo bC'
contrary to any statcPr-fcdcral law,}thc'remainihg provisions of
this Agriecmeht.wll reniaiih in'fiiirforce and effect.

24.-, ENTn^ AGREEMENT; This Afitcement, which raay be
cx©c'uted:in; aAu'ttbef-'pf cpun'tcip each-rof which shalllbe
deemed aii drigihal, cphstilutes the: entire agreement and
uhderstandjng b-Ciwecn. the; p^^^^ and supersedes .all prior
-a^eementslandphdcrstMidjpgs with reject to the subject matter
hereof.
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NEW'HAMPSfflRE OFFICE GF STMTEGie IlSITlAtlVES:

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1; Subparagrapji 1.15 of the Generai.Provisions;.shail not.apply this.agrectneht.

2. Ga or, before the dale set [forth in Block 1.7 of the-Gehefal Provisibris, the'Cbhtfa'clof sh^l deliver, to
the State ah independent audit of the Contractors entire agency by.a qualified mdependent:audilpr;in'
.good standing with thejstate ahd.ft

3. T^'s audit shall be cpndujcted .ihfaccordanpe with the audit requirementis of Office of Strategic
:Ihitiatiyes-(OSI) Circular 2 CKR-200,.Subject Audit Requirements. ]

I
4. This audit i^brt shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or grant number of !

all expendiUires during the Gpn^Ctof's;fiscal ye_ar. The Cpntraclbr shall utilize :aPbmpetitive bidding
pr6cess''to chobs'e.a qualified financial auditor at' least every four years.

5, The.audit report shall;ihclude;a schedule ofprior years'^questioned costs along,.with ̂ an agency.
re^pnse tp.'the cuiT.enff^t^^^^^ of the prior yeara' quertibned costs. Gbpies'pfaU.ONlB iettere^ written as;
a fesultrpfaudits shall be forwarded to OSI. The audit- shall beforwarded'lp QSTwithjn pne.mpnth of
the time pf,receipt-j>y thejagency, accompanied by'an action,plan fof each fihdihgprquertibhed c6^.

6.- Delete thefollpwing.frpm paragraph 9..2 of the General Provisions; "f^e fpnh, subject matter, conterit,
ah'd;humbef of.cdpics of the Termihation Report.shall be identical.tothose:ofany Final Repprt
described in Exhibit BV'-

7. The costsxharged'.under.^s cpnfracf shall be detennined as^allowdble under the cbrt principles
detailed,in 2 CFR 200, Sub'part'E - CbstPirinciples;

.Prpgram ahd.fihahciai rccbfds-pertaining to.tfais contract shall be;retaihcd by"the'agency fprO (three)
, years from the date of submissipn; of the .final expenditure report'pef2CFR" 2b6!-333 0 Ke'terilibri
[Requifciherits for Records ahd uhtihall audit findings have been resolved.

i9. the'fbllbwihg;pafagraph shall be added to the.general provisibns:

"25..R.ESTRICTlbN:QN ADDITIGN'AL FUNDING-. It is understood and agreed between-the^parties
that naportipn of these fimds'may'be;used for thepufppse; of pbtainirigraddltiohafFcdeWhfiihds under
■ahy ,othcf-'iaw ofthe United-Sta'tes, except if authorized under, that !law."'

lb. GLOSE;ibUT OF CONTRACT. All.fmal required reports and'reimbursement'requests shal]-be
rsubmitted>to the .Slate within.sixty'(60)^^^<^ of the .completion-date (Agreement Blockil .7).

SNHS.SEASII Eihlbils X. A-l. B yH
Prijli- I8AANHT3SS. Gontracior'lnitiab'
CFpA:..93,04<l! Dale ttrVOr'l.o'W"
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mw HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEOie INITIATIVES

EXHIBnr A-I

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CQNTRAGT LANGUAGE

Revisions to Form P.r37'; General Provisions

l.i. Section 4, Conditional Na^reip'f-Agreement; is as fpliows:.:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT:

Notwithstanding,any proyisw of this. Agreement to the contrary; all obligatibris of the State
hereundef, including, without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole,or ih part, under this
Agreement'are cpntingenl,upon cpntmued appropriation pnayaiiabiiitydffu^ includingeriy
subsequent-changes to' thejappfopriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive acdpn;;tha^t:reduccs^ ejimiinates, or.p^enviseTnpdifies lKe:appropriatibh:of
ayaiiAbUity offuhding for-this A^eerriehtAnd the Scope of. Services provided in E^Aibit'Bi-Scope of
Services,rin.wholepr in p^VIn noAvcnt shall the SlAte be liable for any payments h'efeuiiderih.
excwsjofappropriat^ bf-aVaiiable fundl In the event of a reduction, terminationor modification of
appropriated or available funds; .the Stale shall Iwvc the right'to wUhhpjd pa^Ant'^
becpme aya'ilable, if evef, Tlie State shali:have'the.nght.fo:reduce,;terminateor.modify services, under

'  this Agreement-immediately uppnrgiving the G.ontracfqf noticepf suclh';red^^^^ terminatibh of-
modificatiphVTheStatAshall'nofbcirequired'to transfer-funds fromany other source oraccount into
"the Accountfs) identified jn blpckd ̂6 of the General Pro.yisibns; Account Nuihl5crv.or:any other
accbunt. in.the, event ftiiids:afe reduced bf-uiiavailabie.

"1.2. Sectio"n:9.Termiriatibn. is anieri'ded By-addihg:the following-language:

9,;3' The State'may tcitniriate-the A^eemeni a't any tiihe for any'rcason, atthe sole,diScrction-of the-
State,'3,0;days;after :giving:"the Gpn'tractpr-written notice that .the Statels exercising itsbptibh.to
tenninate.the Agreement. ^

9.4 in the*cycnt,of carly^^ the Cohtractbrishall, within 15 days of notice;of'early
fcrmmation;,dcvelbpand.^BmitJto the Staie a Transilipn Plan fo.r;seryices'undcf,'tKe A^ce^
including but, not limited to, identifying the;pfeserit;^d future heeds of clients receiving services
under the Agreement and-es,tablishes a processfp" meefthpse needs,

•9.5:TheContracior shall fully-.copperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
infprmatipn''lb support;tlie Tran'sitibtfPian: including,- but not limited to. any information ordata
:requeslcd-by 'lhc State,related,to the termjnatipn.pf the.-Agrccm Tr^itionRlafi and shall
■,prt)vide;brigbihg cbmmuhicatibh and ftv of the Transition Plan to. the StatcAS requested:

:9;6 Ih .theeyent.tliaf s'eryices-uhd A^emcnt,.in'cludihg,but;riot.limited to clients'recciving
services under the Agreement.are U^sitibned tp having services delivered by aribthcf entity
:ihcludihg contfacted proyidefs. pf thejStatc, the Cbhtractbf shall .provide,a-proccss, for:uriihtcrrupted.
delivery of sendees iin the-Transition.Rlan.

■9;7 .The Contraclorrshall cstablisha method of notifying clients and other affected individuaisiabbut
the U^ns.itiph. Tf^elContfactbf shall include the.prbpo'sed.cornniuhications in.'its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

SNHS SEAS21 ^hibits A.Arl. B^.
Grant:, 18 AANHT3SS. Contnictorlnitinls-C
CFpA:.93.044 Dale b
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'2..Renewal

•2.1. The Department reserves the'ri^t tp exlcnd this agreement for up-td two (2);adclitjdnal years,
cdiitingeril upon satisfactory delivery ofiServices,;available:funding, wrillcn.agreement?of the p^ies
:and approyal:pf ,the Governor and,ExecutivejGpuncn.,

S,NHSSEAS21 Exhibit A, Ar I. B
Grant:, 18AANHT3SS ^ Goiitracior Iniljalsi
CFDA:93.044 ' PaieMO-U;^
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

eMibit B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor, agrees to provide Senior Energy Assistance Services to qualifi^,low-income
-individuals, and agrees to'perform all such semc^^d'other work'necess^ to operate the
prdgi^ in accord^ce with the principles.and objectives set forth in the-Fuel Assistance Prpgr^
Procedures Manual ahd.othef guidance as determined by The Office of Strategic Inidatives (QSIJ.

Senior Energy Assistance Si^ces (SEAS) wiil.be.defihed to include.the following categories:

,1. Outreach, eligibility determ'ihatioh, ̂ d ceftificatiori bf;SEAS.applicahts.

2; Payments directly to energy- vendors:
a;: Reimbureement for goods md seryices^deliyered.

3. Emergency Assistance in the.form ofreimbursem.ent fprgopds or seances.

SNHS SEAS2.1 Exhibits A, A-l . b
Grant: 18A^HT3SS Contractor Initia
CFDA::93.044

Page4 or S



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

EXHIEit C

PAYMENT TERMS

Ihxonsideriatiori ofthe satisfactoty performajice of the/semces ds determined; by the: State, the State
'ajgf^s to pay dver to the Contractor the sum of $37,220.52 (which hereinafter is referred to as the
"funds").

The.foildwihg funds will be^auth'brized:

;$3.7,|220.52 for Senior Energy Assistance Services'(SEAS).

The dates for this contract, ̂ e upon Governor and ExecutiiYe Council approval through.Septemb'er 3Qi
2022.

Approval to obligate thc above-awarded fundis will be provide in writ^^^ by the Office ofStrategic
Initiatives.fo the Contractor. Reiiuburseraents will be.made-to the Gpntractoronly after, written
documehtatiori ofx'ash heediis submitted to' the State. Disbursement of these flinds shajl be ih;
acCptdahce-with procedures established^ by thC State;

SNHSSE>^.2l Exhibtls A. A-r.^
Crsni: ISAANH'nSS Contractor Iniliafc ^

CFbA:93.M4: Datcitiil3f^
Page 5 of 5



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

ST/^DARD EXHIBIT D

The Contrac'tor^idcnlified in.Section 1.3:pf the General Proyisions;agrees to complyLwith the provisions of
Sections 515;1-5i60,-of the:DnjgtFrec Workjpiace Act.of 1988 (Pub. L. 100^69.0, Title V, Silbtitle D; 4i U'SC.
70.1. .et'Scq;), and'forther agrees to have the Gontractor's representatiYei as identified ih Seclions 1.1 J :1-12 of
the GeneraJP'rpyisions execute theToilQwing-Certification:

GERTIFIGATION REGAimiNG DRUG-FREE WORIO^LAqE REQIMEMENTS;
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANGES OTHER THAN INDrvIDUALS

USJDEPARTMENT of HEALTH-AND human SERVICES:- CONTRAeTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATIONi- GONtRAeTdRS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR.
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is.reqiiired by the regulations implemehtihg Sections 5151 -5,1.(50 of theOrtig-Free, Workplace
Act,ofT988 (Pub; L.il 00-690, Title-V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq;). TheJanu^'31-, l_989'regulatipns were
amended-and published as P^.IlqfthefMay'^S, i990,Federal Register (oaiees 2i68,i-2169.1),,and require
'.(rertificatibh by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantecs.and.sUbK:oritractors), prior to aw^d, lhat4hey .vyili
maintain a-dregt^P'workplace. SectiOh 30T,7:630(c) ofthc:re^latiori pfb'yidcs tiiat a-grantee (and'by^inference,
sub-grantees ahd;sUb'-c'oritractors)rthat is a State may'clect.tb make.one:ccrtification to-thc pepartmeni;iQ\each
federal Tiscal ,year m of certificates, fOr'eachgi^t durihg'the^federal.fiscafyeaf c
The:cert^cateset,'out below is amaterial representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when Ae^agency
awardS'the granG Tfilse certijficalipn or viplatipn .of.the cert.ificatipnfshail beTgrOjmds^fpr-suSpcnsibn of payments,
suspension.br-'terinmation of;gfahts,.6rg6vcnuncnt-wide suspensibn.or debarment.. Gontrac'tors using.this foim
shovUd.send'ittp:,

Director, New Hampshire Office of S.butegic Initiatives,
107 Pleasant Stfecl. jbhhsOn Hail, Coficofd, NH ̂03301

(A), The;g^tec;certifies that it will o_r will cpntinue'.to provide a dmg-fi^. workpla^^^^^ by;:

.(a) PubHshing a ,statement notifying employees that the unlawfylmimufacti^^
dispensing,.possession of-use.o'f a controlled subs'tance-is prohibited in the:grantee's'woricplace
and;sp.ecifying;theactjoqs that will be^taken ag£unst,Cmpioyccs:fpt yiola^^ of'such prohibition;

'(b) Establishing an ongoing drog-free;awarenc^^ program to inform employees aijPut—

(1); The dangcrs pfdrag.abusc in the wOricplace;
(2): The'graritee's p'Oiic/offhainfaihihg adrugrffee.worlqjlace;.
f3) Anyayailablc drug counseling, rehabilitatipn, and;cmplpyee assisjahcc prb^i^^^ and,
(4) THejpehaltics thatmay be imposed upon employees.for drug abuse violations occurimg

in the workplace;

Icj Makingiit a;rcquircmcnt that each.emp!oyee,;tp;^.engaged^in'the p.eifprmance:ofthe;graht"bc
^ycri„a cPpypf the stateracht.requifedby para^aph (a);

(d) Notifying the erajployee in the statement required by paragraph (a)'that,,as.a condition of
employment under the grantVthe employee; wilj—

(1) Abide, by the terms,of the'stateihent ; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her con\action fona violation of a crirriinal drug

statute occurring in the, workplace no later than.five'calendar.days:after'such conviction;;

.P37'Exhibit5;D thru H, . Contractor lriitials^
Graht"l8AANHf3SS Date:
CRbAtf93;044 Page, .1 of 7



(C)

(0.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTEiWAtP'E I - FOR GRAJVTEES OTHER THAN INRlVlIiyALS, cont'd

US PEPMTMENT of HE^TH AND HUtoN SER^^^^ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF'EDUGATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRlCULTtRUE - CONTRACtORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENiERGY

Nblifying the agency in writing/wiihin ten calendar days a under
subpai^aph (d)(2)-frbm-an employee or otherwise receiving-actual notice of such conviction.
Employere of convicted employes must ;proyide notice;:including ppsition tilieVtp,'every grant
officer otf whbse griuit activity the convicted.cmploycc was working; unless the.Federal agency
basjdesignatcd a central point fpr'thc receipt; of such; notices.. l)|Qti.ccVshali include-liie
idehtificatioh humbcr(s) of each affected grant;

TakihgJbhe of the followihgiactidns, within 30 calendar, days of recemng noiicc under
stibp^graph'(d)(2), .with respcct to.any employee who'is sp cpnyictei^

(1) T^ng appropriate personnel aCtibn.'agmnst such-^OT and ihdudihg
terihihatibnV-cbhdkehl with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act.of 1973,- 8$
amended; or

(2) iR^uirihg-such.empioyee to participate satisfactorily in a.drug abuse assistance or
;rehabiHtatipn<program approved for such purposesiby'a Federal, iStatej ofl.dcai hedtii,
.iawTehforcetheht,.brj other appropriate agency;

(g) Makihg'a good faith 'effbrt to continue to maifitaih a driig-free workplaceihrough implementation
ofpara^phs (a);;,(b)i- (c); (a),;(e)',;and "(0,

(B) The grantee may'ihsert in ̂ c spacc proNodedibelow the site(s) fpj ifie.perfo^ramce in
conhisclibh.with the specific, ̂ ht.

PlaCepif.Peffbrinimce (W county, State,:zip:,code) (lid each locatibh)
40 Pine Street
Manchester, NH 03103

Check O if there arAwdrkplaces oh file that are not; idehtifie'd here.

•Southern New-Hampshire'Seiyices December :16; ,2^20 to Se^ 30, 2021
Contractor Period CpVered,by Uiis.Geftification

Byan Clouthier,, Deputy Director

Namc;and Title of Authorized ContraclorReprcscnlative;

11-

Gpntraptflt^^jftcpresentalive Signature Date

P'37 Exhlbits.D.thru H' GontrHctor Initials:

Grant, I8AANHT3SS Date: UMcv-A.xr2-«J

CfvDA#93.044 Page 2.of7



NEW H/mPSHip; OFTIGE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

Thc Conlractor.identifrcd in Section 13 ofihe-General Prpyisions agrees to complyjwth the provisions of
Section 3 l?:otPublic-^^ 21, Gpyenijnent'wiije Guidahceifor New RestiHctioris onXobbying, and 31.
IJ.S.C.'1352, and ftirther-agreesftO'have the Contractor's.representative, as identified in S.ectibns 1.1 l.and i.l2.of
the GeneraJ Provisions execute the fpllpwihg.^^^

eERTIFIGATIOHMGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH /^D HUM^ SERVI€ES,- COI^RACTORS,
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUGATION -CONTRAcfoRS

tlS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SEAS

Cpntract Period; peccmber 16;3020 tp September 30, 2022

Theuhdereigried.ccrtifies, to?tKc;bestl5f In or herknowledge.and.belief, that:

(.1) No.Feideraj appropriated funds haveibecn paid or ,wiU be paid by or on behalf.bfthe undersigned, to any
person fpr;mfluencing;or attempting toiinfiuen^^^ an pfficer;oremployec;of any agen a'Mcraber.of
Con^ss, an officerof "employee of Cohgfess; or an employee of a Member:of^Congress in cpnnection
with the;awarding of ̂ y Federal cpntract, continuation, renewal, ainen^enti p'r fnodificatioh of any
Federal eOhtract, gfmit;'16em of cooperative a^eement (and by-specific mention subrgr^tee or sub?-.
contractpr)i

'(3) If'any f^dsother th^; Federal apprppnatcd;.fiLirids hayeibeeh paid of will b'e paidvto-ahy person for
influencing orattempting to.influence an officer or employee of any.agencyj.a Member-pf^^ an
officer or empjoyee pf.Cpn^sSj.pf .anomploy^ a,Merhbef of Congress in cOhricction with this.

'.Fcderal.cohtracf,.grant, Joan, or cooperative agreement (and.by spccificmentipn sub-grantee or sub
contractor); .thcVunderaigp^ shafl.cpraplete and submit Stahdafd'Fonii LLL, "IDisclbsure Forim.to Report
Lobbying, ih accordahce withuts Instructions^ attached-and identified.as;Stand^ Ejdijbit E-l

(3) Thc/vrndersigned shaiiirequirc'thatthe language of thiseertificatipn bC:mcluded in fliejaward.document
,fof'sub:awardis.at,'ail ti«s.(mcludihg subcontracts,'sub-^^ts; and cbritfacfs underv^ants, loans, and
;coopcrative:agreements) and thaball sub-recipients,shall certify and "disclose accordingly.

This ceftificatibn is a.matcnal^reprcscntm upon which reliance jvas placed y/^hen.llus trahsactibh'wa
made.or entered.ihto'.- .Subniissibh bf-this certification-is a prerequisite, formaking or entering-iht'p this transaction
imposed by Section 1352,;Title 31/0?$;..Code. .Any person who;fai.ls_tp'filc3he required certificatibn'shaJl be
subjectHo.a'.ciyik^enaitjt^.'nbtJess thM $10,000 and not.more than SlOOiOOOTor each such failine.

RyanClouthier, Deputy Director
Coritravo^s Representative Si^ature Gpntracfpr'sRepresentatiVeTit^

Southem-New-Hampshire Sgrvibcs:
Contractor Niame Date

P37 Exhibits p. ihni Gontractorlnitials;'
Grant 18AANHT3SS- Date:

;CFDA#93:044 PageJofV



NEW HAMPSHII^ OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

TheContractor identified-in Section 1..3.'of the General,Pipyisjpns^agrees to comply with the provisions of
^ecurive Officepf the President,.ExecuUve.Ordef 12549. ahd.45 CFR Part 76'regarding Debarment, Suspension;
and Other Responsibility MaUers, and/further agrees to haye the Gpnlfactpr's repfescntativCj as'.idchtifie
S.ectibhs-l.Tl and.I ;12 of the Gehefai.Provisions execute theTollowing Certification::

CERTifFieAfidiyliECARDm^ debarmeivt. suspension,and other
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS r PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Ccriijicaiiqn

(]■),■ Byisigning and subnuttmgithis proposal (contract), the pibspective'primary participaht^s providing the
certification set out below.

(2): The inability of a;pcrsonUp'pro.yiSe-{he Certificalipn r^uired beiow will hot.neccssanly,fesulltm'denial:of
participation in.this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall,^bmjtfanjex'plhn^^^^^
of why it cannot provide thcCertifiCatioh Tlie certifiCaliqh ,or:explanat cbhsidered^ih-connection
with the;NH Office of Strategiciliiitiatives.determination whether to enter into this -transactioni However,
failure of the pro.spective primaiy-.p'articipari^ to furnish a certification or-ah explariatioh shall disqualify'such
person from participation in this^trMsaction.

(3) The certification'injbis clauseds a.material fepfeseritation offact iipoh which reliahce.was placed whenOSI
determihcd.tb enter; into this transaction. Ifit,is.later determined,that the,prospectiye-,pnmary'pa;rti.cipant
Iqipwihgjy rendered;anertoneo"uscertifi^ ih'addition tobtherremedies ayaiiable to thciFederal
'Goyenimerit, OSI may terminate thisstransaction for. cause or default;

,(4) The prospectiyelprimaiy pailibipant shall,provide immediate wfitteh.hotice to the OSI agency.fo:whom this;
proposal (coritfact) is siibmitted jfat-any time the prospective primary participanfjearas that iti certificati
was:crroneous when saibmitted.pr'hasibccome ertone^ by reason ofchanged circumstances.

(5) The;terras "covered transaction,"^'-debarred,"'"suspended" ''ineligible," ''lower fier cpyered transa^^^
''participant'r" "person," ''pHrnaiy cpyered transaction," "pnhcipai;" "pToposal," and Voluntarily excluded,"
as used in thisxlauseVhave the.'meanings set.outdh.ihe Definitions and Coverage-sectib^ of the,rules
implenienting Executive Order 125^49:. 45lGFR.P,art'76;, See thelattached.definitibns.

(6) The'prospective-primaiy participanfagreesiby submitting this proposal (contract) that, should !the proposed
covered ti^Sacfibn be cnteredJhtb^it:shaJi.Dpt.lcnbwihgiy enter into any lowerrtiervcoyefed transaction with a
person'who is debarred, suspended, declaredtineligible. or voluntarily:excluded from parficipatibn in. this
coyeredtransactionj-pnlcss authori^,.by OSI,

(7), The,prospective primary participant^further agrees by submitting this proposal thaTiJ wiU;mcludc the:clause
Utled.'"jGert.ificaiionRegwdjng;Debaim;ent,,Suspensioh, jneh - Lower-Tier
GovefedTrahsactibns," provided.by OSI, without modificationi in all lower. ticr covered transaciions:and;in
all solicitatipns for lower tier coyere4;transactions..

(8) A participaht in a covered.fransaction mayrely upon a certification of a prpspecUve participant'in a lower.tier
coyered-transacfibn ^at it is notjdebartei suspehded, ineligible, .ofinvoluntarily excluded fromihe covered
Inmsactibh, uhless.it kriows;that:the certification is erroneous. A participant-may decide the method,.and,
frequencyby which it^detcnhmcs^^^ eligibiiitybf its prihcipals. Each participant,rhay, but;i's hot rcquired to,
check theNbnTprbcurement.List (ofexcluded parties).

(9) NothingcontainedjnjhC'fpregoing shalfbe construed fo.fequireiestaBlishment ofa'isystem.bfrecordsm order,
to fender ih.gbpd faith the.certification-rcquired by lhis clause.- The knowledge and-information pf a
participant is npt reqiiired to;exceed,.thatiwluch'is normally possessc'd bya.phiderit pefsoh in.the bfdihaiy.
course of business dealings.

'(10) ExccptTor ti^actjpns authorized'under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a-pafticiparit in aicovercd
tfansactioh.kriowihgly enters-into a loweriier covered transaction witha,person who isa,uspended,-deb;arred,
ineligible, or voluntarily'exclude^frpm^participatioh ih thisTfahsactioh, in.addition to other remedies
available to'thc Federal government, OSrmay:tcrminate this transaction-for cause or default.

.P37 Exhibits D thru H. Gontractor Initials:-
Grant I'SAANHTSSS- Date:
CFDA#93.644 Page 4 of 7



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MXTTERS- PRmARY covered TRANSACTIONS, w

Certification Regarding Debarmettt, Suspension,;and Other
Responsibility Matters • PnmaryfdveredTfahsdctibns

(1) The prospective primary participantcertifies lo the best3pf its latowledge and belief, that i^ahd its
principals:'

(a) are.DOt presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared.ineligible, or voluntarily,
excluded from covered ..traPsacdons by any'Federd department or agency;

(b) have hot withih>a three-.yeaf jjeriod pfecedihg this proposal (contract) been cohvicted;of "or had.a
•civil judgment rcndercd;agaihst-them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, atlemptihg'td obtain, .or performing a public. (Federal, State or-iocalj'ti^saction
of a contract under aspublic transaction; viblation..of.Federal or State aritit'rust;siatutes or
■comiTussion of eibbez^crachtl theft, forgery, b'nbei^, falsificadoh'of destruction of records,,
making falsestatcments, or;rccciving.stolcn property;

(c)' are-not presentlyindicted for otherwise crimmally;or, civilly ch^ged by a gpyemmental entity
(Federd, State or idca.l)'wilh=comm of any of the\6ffenses enumerated in paragraph:(l) ̂ b)
of this certification; and

(d): have ndt within a three-yea.r period preceding this appjicatid.n/prpposal,,had ohe:Of'more>p.ublic
trahsactidhs" (F,ederal,;State.of'lbcaj) terfhihatcd for causeof.default.

(2) Where the'prbspective-priinaiy is-iinable to,certify to any ofthe statements in this
certification,7SUch,prpspec{iye paiticip.ant]shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contra'ct).

'Ceriificatipn;l(egqrding:De^rmen^ Suspension, fyeligiM^^
ydlunidiy/ExclusidX - Lbwer.'Tier Covered Transactions

<Tb'Be.'Su'pplied to Lower Tier .Participahts)

By signing and.submitting this lower lief proposal (oPhtract), the'prospective.lQwcf tier participant, as dcfihcd.ih-
'45 CFRPaft?76. certifies tO/'thebest.of its knowledgc.andbelief that it andiits principals:

(a) arc ndl presently, debarred, suspended,'proposed forr-debarment,-dcclarcd ineligiblei or voluntarily
excluded frpm participation' in this .transaction.by aiiyifedeiai department'of 'agency

(b) where the prospective. lPwef;ti.cr,participant is, unable, to .certify tdany of the above, such
;prbspective participant,shall:attacban explanation to this'proposar(contfact)^

liie pfospective'lowef 'tief participant furtheragrccs by submitting this proposal (contractJ thatMt'wiliinclu^^^ ̂ s,
clause,;cnt.itled "Gertificatibn Regardingpebannent; Suspcnsiori.Ineiigibilify, and Voiimt^ Excllisidh •- Lower
Tier Covcred-TfMsactiOhs,"-*withoutim6dification in all'lower ticr;covered'transactions andJhJall sblicitatipns for
lower tiercovered^nsaietipns.

Ryan CiOutbief, Deputy Director
Gpntractor^presentative^i^^ Cohtractbf-s Representative Title

Sbuthem New Hampshire'^efvices. Av- '
Contractor. Name Date

P37 Exhibils D thru:H; Controcior Initials:,
Grant I8AANHT3SS Date: 11 -t '
CPDAm.OAA ' Pages, of 7



NEW HAMPSHIRE GFEIGE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

GERTinGATIoN RJEGARDING THE
AMERICANS l^TH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Cqnlractpr.;idehdfied in Section 1:3 tbf th'e.Gerieral.Proyisiohs agrees by si^ature of the Contractor-s;
representative as identified in Sections Ll 1 and lJ'2 of;the General Provisions; to execute the ifoilowing
certification:

By signing^d subrnittiiig this;prpposai (contact), the Cdhtfactor agrees.to m^e reasonable efforts to
cbiriply with' all applicable provisions of the Ainericans with Disabilities Act.ofT?90.

Ryari Cloiithier, Deputy'Direc'tor

Gontractws Repi^sentative Signatu^ Contraclorls Representative Title

Southern New Hampshire Services vt 'Xo-lx/to

Gontfactor Name Date

P37 Exhibils D ihru H

Grant 18AANHT3SS

CFbA//9'3.()44

Contractor Initials:'

bate:
Page 6 of 7'



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIG INITIAjrVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law ip>227^^
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance wi^PariG of Public Law:i03-227, the'Tro-Children .Act o,fi994", ismolqngrnay not be.
pe^tt^ in any portion of any indoor facility owhed.or regularly used for-the provision of health, day-care,
education, or Hbra^ services; to'childrcn under the age^pf 1 §i;if the;sei>ic«,^ifiand^ by Federal pip'grams
•eitherdircctly.orthfPugh.State of local gove'rhiherits. Federal programs includegrants.pooperativeagreements,
loans and'loan gu,ar^tees;;and contracts. The.'law does not apply tppWidren's,services provided; ih'priyatc,
:residehccs,;facilities funded.solely.'by'Medicafc or Medicaid.fiinds, and;portions or facilities used for inpatient
dnag or alcohol trMtment.

The above-language must be-includcd' in-any sub-awards .that contain provisions fprchildfen's/scryices^ .^^^ .that
;alKsub-grahtees sliaii certify cbihpliance accbfdingly. Failure to. comply with^-the provisions of this law may result
in theirnpositipn pf Vcivil raonet^ penally of up;to;$l,OOQ per day.

Gpnitgcto^s Representative. Sighature
'Ryan Cibutluer,,Deputy Director

Gontractbr-s Representative Title

Southerh New Hampshire Services

Contractor Name Date

P37 Exhibits D:ihru H

Crant'('8AANHT5SS
CFDM93.644

ContTuctor Itiitiols: _
Dote: Lu'lAj'

Page 7.df-7



-S^S Approval to Obligate Exampl.ejp.nty Exhibit 1

Date'

ADMIN. . FA PROGRAM . ... . :SEAS .ASSUR-16 . TOTAL

iCCNTRACTEDiBUDGET'. A' .  -.;553;035.00. .'£5 9;576j150.00';^„;\5,250;00; '.v.soo.ooiioo :10;634,436.00. j
EXPECTED,BUDGET. 553,035.00 7;422.150.00. 5:250;00." 500.0OT.O0 8,480.'436.00 "

. :PREVlOUSlY:OBLtGATED ,. . o:oo DOG; :0.00 iO.oo; 0:00

iTHIS APRROVAUMO^OBLIGATEr .c 1553,035.00." V .i;:'7,422;i50.00.;- '/i5i250.00".  :500,001:00: : <8;480,436:00 Jj
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 553.035.00 7;422;150.00 5:250.00^ 500.001:00 8;480;436.00
NOrAUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATED bioci; .2,154,000.66 0.00 0.66 2i154;006.6o

.BMCA
Date

ADMIN. FA-PROGRAM iSEAS' ASSUR>16; TOTAL

1 CONTRACTED BUDGET. "81;40T;00- : VJ."412,486.00 •i:;i ,000.00: 75.618:00--'..1S570:485;00"v,|
EXPECTED.BUDGET 81,401.00. 1.092,466.00 1,000;00' 75.618.00 ■ 1v250.485;00

..PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED: .'o:oo 0.00- :0;00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS'APPROVAL^TO, OBLIGATE. .V. :8i;40.i:oo .. :';1:1;092,466:00 , .-iroooioo^.775,618:00.....i1;250;'485;00; |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 81,40i;00 1.092,466.00 • 1,000.00' 75.618:00 1,250:485.00

NOT AUTHORIZED. TO OBLIGATE o.bb .320';6d0.d6" .6.00? 0:00 320,000.00

SNHS

Date

ADMIN. FA program: . _ seas; .ASSUR16' TOTAL.

iCONTRACTED BUDGET- i';, -V" ^■135,549:00,' ^ V.12,179;i69;00 f=!1,000.00 ^•.:J122,070S00 w i:2;437,788.00!. |
EXPECTED BUDGET 135i549.00 1.819;169;00 1,000.00 ■  ■122;070.00 .2,077;788.00:- "
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00' o;oo 0.00 d.od ;6.66

ITHIS ARRROVALVTO.OBLIGATE;, ■- 135iS49:D0:i;. .-.i;8i9;i69.oo;. , - .J1;000.00'.  122i070.00:u r2i077.788.00; |
TOTAL-AVAILABLETOOBLIGATE: 135,549.00 1,819,169.00 1,000:00 122.070.00' :2.077.788;00
NOT AUTHORIZEDTO OblVGaH 0.00 360,000.00: 000 P";P0 36o:opo,po.

swcs
Datei

AD^IN.-. FA'RROGRAM SEAS-.. ASSUB 16: TOTAL
[contracted:budget: . c-. : . f70;689:00'> •,1,248;699:00. ,. .j7S0:00-. .63,621100 .- J1,383:759.00'^|
:EXREGTED BUDGET" •70.689;00 948;699.00: ;750:00 63.621.00; " -1,083,759:00
■PREVIOOSLY^OBLIGATED ,  . 0.00 - . .OiOO o:oo . 0:00 o'oo
THIS APPROVAL'TO OBLIGATE / '  :,70;689.00 :. ; . ,948;699;oo!\:" •- .;%750.00 , '63,621.00=: ■;i,083,-759.00.-|
TOTAL AVAILABLErTO^OBLIGATE' .70,689.00 948:699.00' -750;00: 63:621.00: '1,083.759:00
NOT AyT.HOWZEpT:o:OBLlGATE, o:oo 300^000.00 0.00 o'oo' .ado.Mo^db

secA
Date

ADMIN. FA'.PROG^M seas ASSUR16 . TOTAL
Icontracted'budget- j. . b: 55-182:00; : ; 15085;582.00,^ , ^s750;oor-': .■ 48;635.00:;- :;ivi9o;i49.oo; j
expected;budget 55;i,82:00. 740,582.00 750.00. 48:635.00 '845.-149.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGA^^^^^ o:oo . . 0.00. 0:00 iO'.OO. 0:00
THIS APPROVAL T0:0BUGATE - ''r55;182!00"r- "■ :74o,582.oo:;v".': .T50:00' .  48;635.00, - 845;14g.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 55; 182.00: 7-40,582.00 ~"  "750.00. 48:635.00; 845,149.00
NPJ AUTHORIZED TP OBLIGATE o:oo' 345,000.00 •o:od 0:00. 345:000.00.

TCCA
Date

adMin. FAPFiOGR>\M' seas ASSUR 16 .  .TOTAL
ICONTRACTEDBUDGET . i ' . 131„191.00!.n . V2:247'.683.0q? , 1;000:00' • 1.13,613:00. 2.'493,487'.00-'~|
EXPECTED BUDGET 131,191'.00 1.760i683.00 I.OOOiOO 113,613.00 2,006:487.00
PREViOUSOY^OBLIGATED: 0.00; 0.00;. .  ;0;00. ... ,  . ,0.00 . . .0;00:
THIS APPROVAL-TO OBLIGATE: _ ,  131,191.00 !  ;1;760:683:00 \, " ■^1,000:00 r113,613:00^ 2,006.'487.00 '1
TOTAL -AVAILABLE TO. OBLIGATE 131,19r.00 -1.760,683.00 1.000.00, 113;613:00 2.006;487.00"
NOT AUTHpRlZED TO OBLIGATE o;oo 487.dQ0:00 0;00; .0.00, 487,000.00

P37.ExNbii 1 Cortrsctoir'Mtlats:
Grani;'18AANKn$S :Oate: ..i/c/i'r'Lti'VAi
cfo^;83.<:m4 .P5oe l.oT l



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime, awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to of greater than $25,00,0 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants, of $25,000 or more.
If the-initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications rcsujl in .a total award equal to or
over S25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation-Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following infonnation for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names ofthe top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are.ffom the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month plus 30 days, in which
tlie award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282. and Public Law I.IO-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), artd further

agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Ceitificatibn;

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed infonnation as .outlined above to the NH Office
of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
AccoupTSfajlity^and Transparency Act.

Ryan Cloulhier, Dqjuly Director

(Contmctoi^sHe^sentativ^'Sfgnature) (Authorized Contractor's Representative Name & Title)

Southern New Hampshire Services U \ O ' "Lot-C?

(Contractor Naihe) (Date)

P37 Exhibit J Contractor Initials:

Grant: 18AANHT3SS Dare: to '-uoa^
CFDA: 93.044 Page 1012



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in.Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 088584065

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO XYES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here;

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in,your'busihess
or organization throu^ periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO XYES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five, most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

P37 Exhibit J

Grant: 18AANHT3SS

CFDA: 93.044

Contractor Initials:

Date:

Page-2 of2



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrctiafy of Siatc of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hercb); ccrti^ that SOUTHERN.NEW

HAMPSHIRE SERVICES.FNe, is;a New HariiiKhire Nonprofit Corpora'lioo registered, to t^sact business in New Hampshire on

May 28; 1965.1 further certify.thai all fees and-documents required by thc Secretary of State's office have been.received and is in

good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Busincss.ID: 6S506

Certificate Number 00(M91306S

Oof

a&i

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF;

I hereto'set m'y.hand arid cause to be,affixed

the.Seal of the State of Hampshire,

this;;i2th day of May A.D- 2020.

William.M. GaMnCT

Secretary, of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Coiyorate AutKbrity)

I, Orville Kelt , . /GlCTk/Secfetary;Qf Southern New Hampshire Services
(Name) (Gorppratlpn namc^

(Hereinafter the •-Gorporatiori'^l-a . .New Hampshire corporatioh. hereby certify tfiat: (I );! amVthe duly
.(State)

elected and acdng €leri^Secrrtaiy.of.the 'Corpbratiph; (;2) I,maintam wd-h^^^^ am fihiliar'with-the
minute,bbgii; of the;.Gpfpbfali6n; (3) lam duly authorized to issue certificates .withrcspecfto the contents of such,
books; (4):that,the Bbard.of Directors.of the Coippration haye authorized; on-^>»ff^.'- -Q^^AZid. ̂cK autiibfity

^  ~ (D«c) '
to be^ihrforcc'.and effecf untiUoeyc' 3Q -•

(Gontract (ermination date)

'The,pci?pn(s)hpldingthe"befo^ are. authbnzed'tb; execute and behalf.of the
ConJbratibh.My.cbhtract bf'bthef ihstiiiment fo"r-the:sale:ofproducts andservices:

.Donnalee Lozeau . • 'Executive Director
(N^c)^ !(Position)

Rvari Glbiithief' Deputy Director.
(Notc): (Position)

James Ghaisson Chief Fireal Oflicer
(Name) (Position)

R'6p:Ro"ss Housing Fiscal (DfEcef ^
(Name) (Position)

(5)The;^meeting pfthe'B,p^d ofPireetors^was held iiraccbrdahce with' NewHanrlpsbire
(Si^e;9f incbtporaiion)

law-iMd fte by-laws^pf thc;Gprppra^ andX6) saidauthpriMtibh,h^:hbt,beeh,mb.ifie amended or rescinded
cohtihues^iii WU fbrce.vahft cffect'asiof thci^ hereof.

TN WITI^SS' I.haye hereuhtblsct ihyihi^d.asthe Clerlc/Sccretaiyrof the corporatibnithis,

dav of

Clerk/Secrefary
SXATEOF Ncw-Hampshife
CQUNTY-QF Hillsborough- .

Oh this /fO "^^dav of. .-20': '^0' .."before mc; ^ -fl tL /T-ec- 4'^
the undersigned Officer; per^naily,apb^^ Z^V" t/ / /7e: T who acknowledged her/himself'
to'be,tire of f4tsi
and that she/he as'such' irc^. bcirig-authorized fp,dQys6vexecuted"the forcgoihg
instmment for .the puippseSithereih .cpntaiifed.

^IT^SS WHEI^OF;;I,her:e^ hand.and officiai real.

«r«TOHRER
Notary P.ublic/Justice.6fe|^«uWc,-'New;H^^^
.GpmmissiOD'ExpiraMaififiBMj^"Expi^.Octotoef.7/2025



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOfYYYY)

1/2/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER License # 1780662
HUB international New England
600 Longwater Drive
Norwell, MA 02061-9146

(781) 792-3200 r>w.Hoi:(781) 792-3400

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A; Cincinnati Insurance Comoanv 10677

INSURED

Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
40 Pine Street
Manchester, NH 03103

INSURER B; Eastern Alliance Insurance Comoanv 10724

INSURER C :

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E ;

INSURER F : '

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWfTHSTANDiNG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJS.
TYPE OP INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE I X I OCCUR

CENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

I X I LOCPOLICY

OTHER:

ADOL

msa
SUBR

WYP. POUCY NUMBER 1 UMITS

ETD 041 72 57 12/31/2019 12/31/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED

MED EXP lAnv on« penon)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000

1,000,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddenU

1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

mONLY

ETA 041 72 60 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 BODILY INJURY tP» p«f»oo)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

NQN
AUTO;

BODILY INJURY IPef wxkMnil

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(P«f ACCiClCfill

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
5,000,000

ETD 041 72 57 12/31/2019 12/31/2020
AGGREGATE

5,000,000

X RETENTIONS 10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/eXECUTIVE
EXCLUDED?OFFICER/MEMBER I

Mandatory In NH)
If yes. descrilM under
PESORIPTION OF O

I f n

s
03-0000112165-02 12/31/2019 12/31/2020

Y PER
A STATUTE

OTH-

ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

PERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

Professional Llab. ETD 041 72 57 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 Aggregate $2,000,000 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddlBonel Remarks Schedule, may be attached H more space Is required]
Automobile: $500 Comprehensive Deductible I $1,000 Coltision Deductible

Workers Compensation Covered States (A): NH, ME

NH Office of Strategic Initiatives
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statement
of financial position as of July 31, 2019, and the related combined statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 12, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
combined financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned ftinctions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization's combined financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters ^

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's combined financial statements are free from material misstatemenl, we performed tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

OueOette ̂ jUsociates,
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of

FederalAwards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate's compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's major
federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2019. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and affiliate's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

!n our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate as of and for the year ended July 31, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated February
12, 2020, which contained an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements. Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the combined financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined
financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the combined financial statements as a whole.

OueSette ̂ JbsociaUs,
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine "



SOUTHERN NEW IIAMrSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Federal Grantor

Pa.<is-lhrou|>h Grantor

Program or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pas.s-Through

Identifying
Number

Subrecipient

Expenditures Ex

Federal

pendilures

FEDERAL AWARDS

U.S. DenarlmenI of Apriciilliirc:

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

WIG Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women.
Infants and Children 10.557

10.557

184NH703W1003

174NH703W1003

S s 1,228,016

114,692

1,342,708

Pass-Through Belknap Merrimack Community Action Program
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10.565

10.565

201818Y800544

201919Y800544

100,632

8,609

.

109,241

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department of

Education

Child and Adult Care Food Program
Summer Food Service Program for Children

10.558

10.559

1,046,749

126,951

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture S s 2,625,649

U.S. Denartment of lloii.sinp and Urban Devclonment:

Direct Program

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy 14.249 J s 520,382

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department of

Health and Human Services \

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 EI7.DC-33-0001 93,004

Pass-Through Belknap Merrimack Community Action Program

Lead-Based Pant Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 14.900 4,000

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development s s 617386

Subtotal s s 3343,035



SOUTHERN NEW MAMPSIIIKE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Federal Granlor

Pass-lhrough Grantor
Program or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pass-Through

Identifying
Number

Subrecipient

Expenditures

Federal

Expenditures

Amount Forward S S 3,243,035

U.S. Denartment ofLabor:

Pass-Through Slate ofNew Hampshire Department of

Resources and Economic Development

WlOA Cluster

WIOA Adult Program
WlOA DLslocatcd Worker Formula Grants

17.258

17.278

02-6000618

02-6000618

S 142,256

135,936

$ 1,131,666

U79303

Total WlOA Cluster 278,192 2,510,969

Senior Community .Service Employment Program

WlOA Youth Activities

WiOA Dislocated Worker National Rcscr\'c

Demonstration Grants

17.235

17.259

17.280

02-6000618

02-6000618

02-6000618

34,787 247,158

13,487

459,003

Total U.S. Department ofLabor s 312,979 S 3,230,617

U.S. Denartment nf F.nerpv:

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Governor's Office
Office of Strategic Initiatives
Weatheriyation Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042 EE0007935 s s 529^73

Total U.S. Department of Energy: s s 529^73

U.S. Denartment of Edtiratinn:

Pass-Through Stale of New Hampshire Department

OfEducation
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002

84.002

84.002

84.002

67011-ABE

670n-ABE

67011-ABE

67011-ABE

s ■ s 32,099

14,308

19,745

40,555

Total U.S. Department of Education s s 106,707

Cornoration for National and Communitv Serrices:

Direct Program

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program 94.002 I7SRANH002 s $ 115,829

Total Corporation for National and

Community Sen'iccs s s 115,829

Subtotal s 312,979 s 7,225,561



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Federal Grantor

Pass-through Grantor

Program or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pass-Through

Identifying

Number

Subrecipient

Expenditures

Federal

Expenditures

Amount For>\'ard S 312,979 S 7,225,561

U.S. Denartment ofHealth and Human Ser\-ices:

Direct Program

Head Stan 93.600

93.600

01 CHOI 0602-0)

01HP0009-04

S - S 6,409450

285.097

6,694,447

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Office of

Strategic Initiatives

Low-Income Home Encrgj' Assistance 93.568

93.568

93.568

G.I9BINHLIEA

G-I8BINHLIEA

G-190INHLIEA

10,052,278

875,547

135,676

11,063401

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department

Of Health and Human Services
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part B, Grants
for Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 I8AANIIT355 13,957

Temporarj' Assistance for Needy Families 93.558

93.558

20I7G9%H5

20I8G996115

847413

69,719

2467,424

284,041

917,232 3,151,465

Community' Scrs'iccs Block Grant

Community Scr\'iccs Block Grant Discretionary' Awards
93.569

93.570

G-190INHCOSR

G-I7BINHC0SR

1,623,853

50452

CCDF Clu.ster

Child Care and Development Block Grant

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of
The Child Care and l>;velopment Fund

93.575

93.596

20I8G996005

20I9G999004

1,129,624

1,046484

Total CCDF Cluster 2,176,208

Pass-Through University ofNew Hampshire

Every Student Succeeds Act/Preschool Development Grants 93.434 IH79SM06I289 109

Total U.S. Department of Health and

Human Sen'ices s 917,232 s 24,774,092

U.S. Denartment of Homeland .Seciirits':

Passed-through Regional United Way Agency
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 s

.

s 5,750

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Governor's Office

Office of Strategic Initiatives
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 592600-007 s s II439

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security s s 16,989

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS s 1,230,211 $ 32,016,642



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

NOTE I: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and affiliate under
programs of the federal government for the year ended July 31, 2019. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regula(iom?din Kid, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards {\Jn\foTri\ Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only
a selected portion of the operations of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate,
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate.

NOTE 2; SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE 3: HEAD START PROGRAMS CFDA #93.600

In accordance with terms of the grant award, the Organization, has met its matching
requirements during the year ended July 31, 2019.

NOTE 4: INDIRECT COST RATE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate has negotiated an indirect cost rate of
9.80% with the Department of Health and Human Services.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR EINTDED JULY 31, 2019

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

internal control over major programs:
identified?Material weakness(es) i(

Yes

Yes

_Yes

Yes

Unmodified

V  No

V  None rep

V  No

Significant deflciency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
tor major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with CFR Section
200.15o(a) of the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Yes

orted

V  No.

Yes

V  None reported

Unmodified

V  No

Community Services Block Grant
WIOA Dislocated Worker National Reserve Demonstration Grants

Head Start & Early Head Start
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

CFDA Number

93.569

17.280

93.600

93.568

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section II Financial Statement Findings

No matters are reportable.

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.

V  Yes

$960.500

No



Helping People, ChangmgUves.

The Community Action Partnership serving
Hlllsberough and Rocklngham Counties

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31,2019 AND 2018



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY3L20I9 AND 2018

CONTENTS

PAGE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 7-2

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Combined Statements ofFinancial Position 3

Combined Statements of Activities 4

Combined Statements of Functional Expenses 5-8

Combined Statements of Cash Flows 9-10

Notes to Combined Financial Statements I! - 22

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT SUPPLEMENTARY

INFORMATION
23

COMBINING INFORMATION:

Schedule A - Combining Schedule of Financial Position 24

Schedule B - Combining Schedule of Activities 25

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES:

Schedule ofRevenues and Expenses - By Contract 26 - 30

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY

Whispering Pines 11 31-37

J.B. Miletle Manor 38 - 43

Sherburne Woods 44 - 50



OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, P.A.
CERTIFI1:D PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Mark R. Carrier, C.P.A.

Michael R. Dunn, C.P.A.

Jonathan A. Hussey, C.P.A., M.S.T.
Steven R. Lamonlagne, CPA.

Gary W. Soucy, C.P.A.
Gary A. Wigant, C.P.A.
C. Joseph Wolverton, Jr., C.P.A.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statements of
financial position as of July 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related combined statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combined
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

A uditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organization's preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate, as of July 31,
2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 12,
2020, on our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and affiliate's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

OueSetU eiLAssociates, <PA-
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I,2019AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Contracts receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Under applied overhead

Total current assets

FIXED ASSETS

Land

Buildings and improvements

Vehicles and equipment

Total fixed assets

Less - accumulated depreciation

Net fixed assets

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued other liabilities

Refundable advances

Over applied overhead

Tenant security deposits

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

109,413

657,676

1,045,805

359,819

227,703

1,028,743'

27,739

84,231

2019 2018

$  6,986,538 $  5,699,842

8,405,690 9,085,663

3,488,413 4,165,520

821,565 836,174

95,197 90,163

- 67,750

19,797,403 19,945,112

2,697,868 2,571,794

12,530,561 11,610,610

1,415,271 1,278,185

16,643,700 15,460,589

5,237,138 4,964,258

11,406,562 10,496,331

411,580 402,738

$ 31,615,545 $ 30,844,181

122,582

458,388

1,102,712

345,967

238,012

1,309,098

81,801

3,541,129 3,658,560

3,036,025 3,134,219

6,577,154 6,792,779

25,038,391 24,051,402

S 31,615,545 $  30,844,181

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

3



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contract revenue

Program service fees

Local funding

Rental income

Gifts and contributions

Interest and dividend income

Unrealized gain on investments

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

EXPENSES

Program services:

Child development

Community services

Economic and workforce development

Energy

Language and literacy

Housing and homeless

• Nutrition and health

Special projects

Volunteer services

SNHS Management Corporation

Total program services

Support services: ^
Management and general

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

2019 201S

S 37,464,614 $ 36,935,915

907,560 790,570

242,894 318,992

1,191,372 994,930

208,728 638,712

314,554 271,590

12,233 441,314

720,124 640,735

41,062,079 41,032,758

8,589,865 8,424,337

1,530,674 1,449,210

6,984,684 7,756,926

13,414,281 12,777,365

436,073 370,697

263,240 238,541

2,527,495 2,486,1 19

1,768,326 1,797,358

125,050 1 14,704

2,396,939 2,017,381

38,036,627 37,432,638

2,038,463 1,770,202

40,075,090 39,202,840

986,989 1,829,918

24,051,402 22,221,484

$ 25,038,391 $ 24,051,402

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 3 L 2019

Program Services

Child

Development

Communit)' /
Services

Economic

Workforce

Development Energy

Language and
Literacy

Housing

and Homeless

Nutrition

and

Health

EXPENSES

Payroll $  5,063,755 $  958,969 $  2,792,330 $  1,519,961 $  294,501 S  104.911 $  1,000,035

Payroll laxes 406.991 74,606 220.133 124,867 24,800 8,511 80,427

Fringe benefits 1,350,633 134,639 492.014 389,808 26,683 22.106 222,241

Workers comp. insurance 102,429 8,625 6,948 17,712 736 262 30,682

Retirement benefits 273.637 89,527 182,279 89,727 7,851 6,689 62,967

Consultant and contractual 37,142 70,228 1.595.405 1.770.887 6,505 654 20,695

Travel and transportation 118,863 19,729 78,856 37,134 992 4,110 47,713

Conferences and meetings - 10,976 - 7,537 225 - 3.471

Occupancy 524,894 58,004 456.078 125,814 28,957 1.020 78,801

Advertising 13,742 25 8,610 1,117 218 - 399

Supplies 243,037 19,254 38.322 57,531 9,422 192 47.201

Equip, rentals and maintenance 12,341 57 13,689 18,308 1,816 - 29,650

Insurance 19,509 24,941 4,905 20,099 - - 6,966

Telephone 85,487 12,661 27.046 20,468 2,547 385 41,963

Postage 5,522 7 553 30,214 568 58 3,189

Printing and publications 5.268 630 - • 1,281 - -

Subscriptions - - 446 456 - - •

Program support • 38,256 ■ 35,312 6,121 - -

Interest 12.995 - • - - - -

Depreciation 64,865 5,920 24.379 10.070 1,045 - 9,920

Assistance to clients 7,800 - 1,066.041 9,156,531 - 114,335 547,988

Other expense 251.015 34,650 19.523 7.118 - • 299,023

Miscellaneous 35,436 736 1.323 1,8)3 21,805 7 2,024

In-kind 2,248,292 - - - - - •

(Gain) Loss on disposal of assets - - - 125 - - -

SUBTOTAL

Over applied indirect costs
Eliminations

TOTAL EXPENSES

10,883,653

(2,293,788)

1,562,440

(31,766)

7,028,880

(44,196)

13,442,609

(28,328)

436.073 263,240 2,535,355

(7,860)

S  8,589,865 $  1,530,674 S  6,984,684 S 13,414,281 S  436,073 S  263,240 S  2,527,495

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

5



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Support
" Program Ser\'ices Services

SNHS Management
Special Volunteer Management Total Program and

Projects Services Corporation Serv'ices General Total Expenses

EXPENSES

Payroll $  74.200 $  73,480 $  492,484 S  12,374,626 $  1,313,585 S  13,688,211

Payroll taxes 6,191 6,004 33,947 986,477 99,061 1,085,538

Fringe benefits 1 1.699 11,872 209,681 2,871,376 181,973 3,053,349

Workers comp. insurance 2.644 184 10,549 180,771 4,483 185,254

Retirement benefits 2,834 2,369 33,859 751,739 110,189 861,928

Consultant and contractual 1,579.582 478 154,356 5,235,932 90,851 5,326,783

Travel and transportation 4.649 6,554 58,681 377,281 14,194 391,475

Conferences and meetings 3,727 220 16,307 42,463 1,675 44,138

Occupancy 18,040 • 600,154 1,891,762 32,663 1,924,425

Advertising 460 2,444 1,050 28,065 75 28,140

Supplies 3,624 6,599 17,685 442,867 40.709 483,576

Equip, rentals and maintenance 4.167 177 21,671 101,876 768 102,644

Insurance 2,007 1,206 40,184 119,817 19,901 139,718

Telephone 2.253 1,453 19,545 213,808 2.167 215,975

Postage 42 535 1,505 42,193 15,912 58,105

Printing and publications • 175 • 7,354 - 7,354

Subscriptions
- 900 130 1,932 360 2,292

Program support 4,077 • 43,787 127,553 - 127,553

Interest - - 59,264 72,259 - 72,259

Depreciation 35.345 • 347,894 499,438 536 499,974

Assistance to clients 1.492 - 88,251 10,982,438 - 10,982,438

Other expense 11,056 1,550 21,821 645,756 13,055 658,811

Miscellaneous 237 8,850 120,753 192,984 1,283 194,267

In-kind - - - 2,248,292 - 2,248,292

(Gain) Loss on disposal of assets - - 3,381 3,506 - 3,506

SUBTOTAL 1,768,326 125,050 2,396,939 40,442,565 1,943,440 42,386,005

Over applied indirect costs . - - - 95,023 95,023

Eliminations - - - (2,405,938) - (2,405,938)

TOTAL EXPENSES S  1.768,326 S  125,050 S  2396,939 S 38,036,627 S  2,038,463 S 40,075,090

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

Program Services

Economic Nutrition

Child Community Workforce Language and Housing and

Development Services Development Energy Literacy and Homeless Health

EXPENSES

Payroll $ 4,957,052 S  954,145 $ 2,665,005 S  1,604,803 S  260.923 $  108,074 $  996,641

Pavroll taxes 408,351 75,089 211,297 134,215 22,698 8,701 82,048

Fringe benefits 1,165,602 126,449 394.224 368.400 12.404 16.013 205.632

Workers comp. insurance 103,257 9,387 6,542 16,946 651 271 32,119

Retirement benefits 262,948 84,961 173,276 83,274 6,498 6.622 56,860

Consultant and contractual 40.049 26.382 1,534,030 1,575.384 6.614 459 22.816

Travel and transportation 117,346 35,209 64.613 41,310 812 5,490 50,659

Conferences and meetings ♦ 5.071 - 7,585 65 - 4,786

Occupancy 509,137 57,628 738.328 135.204 24.229 1.020 76,845

Advertising 9,803 • 8,489 1,442 25 - 150

Supplies 374.662 20.349 32,178 65,002 1 1,743 239 57,054

Equip, rentals and maintenance 21,468 82 39.839 19,776 934 • 23.648

Insurance 19,453 25,393 6,933 19,828 - - 6,565

Telephone 67,962 22,505 46.995 19.322 2,398 420 44.357

Postage 3,837 201 1.481 34.823 350 82 3,683

Printing and publications 4,679 673 • 304 1,511 275 224.

Subscriptions - 635 - - - • -

Program support - 16,178 • 29,907 8,176 - -

Interest 11,962 - - - - - -

Depreciation 54,064 5,920 7.900 13.280 1.144
- 1.468

Assistance to clients 7,800 - 1,826,232 8,613,799 • 90,875 528,940

Other expense 246,533 10,013 32,666 18,899 - - 294,475

Miscellaneous 83,868 446 11.094 2.190 9.522 • 5.009

In-kind 2,269,028 - - - - - -

Loss on disposal of assets - - - - - - -

SUBTOTAL 10,738,861 1,476,716 7,801,122 12,805.693 370,697 238.541 2.493,979

Over applied indirect costs - - - - - - -

Eliminations (2.314,524) (27,506) (44.196) (28,328) - - (7,860)

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 8,424,337 S  1,449,210 S 7,756,926 $12,777,365 $  370.697 S  238.541 $ 2,486,119

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2018

Program Services

Support
Ser\'iccs

SNHS Management
Special Volunteer Management Total Program and Total

Projects Services Corporation Services General Expenses

EXPENSES

Payroll $  63,372 $  75,363 $  422,932 $12,108,310 $  1,258,069 $13,366,379

Payroll taxes 5,433 6,159 42,979 996,970 96,197 1,093,167

Fringe benefits 1.447 13.772 137,202 2.441,145 154,995 2.596,140

Workers comp. insurance 2,427 188 8,844 180,632 4,341 184,973

Retirement benefits 2,305 3,179 44,515 724,438 113,858 838,296

Consultant and contractual 1.630.101 448 171,365 5.007,648 70,685 5.078,333

Travel and transportation 2,655 1,698 55,755 375,547 10,124 385,671

Conferences and meetings 3,706 - 26,557 47,770 770 48,540

Occupancy 13,874 - 470,606 2,026,871 25,489 2,052,360

Advertising 75 25 83 20,092 125 20,217

Supplies 3.I8I 2,557 9,617 576,582 58,000 634,582

Equip, rentals and maintenance (23) 79 8,837 114,640 878 115,518

Insurance 1,353 1,226 34,976 115,727 13,745 129,472

Telephone 2,854 1.332 14,613 222,758 3,890 226,648

Postage - 271 940 45,668 17,288 62,956

Printing and publications - 38 - 7,704 913 8,617

Subscriptions • 1.000 551 2,186 • 2,186

Program support 22,782 - 101,335 178,378 - 178,378

Interest • - 43,543 55,505 - 55,505

Depreciation 25.062 - 317,695 426,533 536 427,069

Assistance to clients 19,869 - 26,984 11,114,499 • 11,114,499

Other expense 867 2,767 3,836 610,056 6,398 616,454

Miscellaneous 188 4.602 71,187 188,106 1,651 189,757

In-kind - - - 2,269,028 - 2,269,028

Loss on disposal of assets (4,170) - 2,429 (1,741) - (l,74i:

SUBTOTAL 1.797,358 114,704 2.017,381 39.855,052 1,837,952 41,693,004

Over applied indirect costs - - - - (67,750) (67,750;
Eliminations - - - (2,422,414) - (2,422.414;

TOTAL EXPENSES $  1.797,358 $  114,704 S 2,017,381 $37,432,638 $ 1,770,202 $39,202,840

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  986,989 S  1,829,918

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 499,974 427,069

(Gain) loss on disposal of assets 3,506 (1,741)

Donation of low-income housing projects - (283,644)

Unrealized gain on investments (12,233) (441,314)

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Contracts receivable 677,107 (374,696)

Accounts receivable 14,609 (245,068)

Prepaid expenses (5,034) (1 1,575)

Under applied overhead 67,750 46,174

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable 199,288 (38,707)

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (56,907) (227,656)

Accrued compensated absences 13,852 19,686

Accrued other liabilities (10,309) (231,349)

Refundable advances (280,355) 171,410

Over applied overhead 27,739 -

Tenant security deposits 2,430 (3,501)

Total adjustments 1,141,417 (1,194,912)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,128,406 635,006

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (1,430,211) (51 1,155)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 16,500 4,170

Purchase of investments, reinvested dividends, and capital gains (307,794) (269,044)

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,000,000 -

Deposit to restricted cash accounts (8,842) (191,550)

Cash received on acquisition of housing project - 256,536

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (730,347) (71 1,043)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on long-temi debt (111,363) (1 13,517)

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,286,696 (189,554)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,699,842 5,889,396

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $  6,986,538 $  5,699,842

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2019 2018

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 72,259 $ 55,505

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition oflow-income housing projects:
Other current assets $  - $ 3,677

Property and equipment - 1,106,200

Other liabilities - (164,006)

Notes payable - ,  (918,763)

Equity acquired - (283,644)

- (256,536)

Cash received on acquisition - 256,536

$  - $ -

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY3I,20I9AND20I8

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Organization
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in New Hampshire's Hillsborough
County and Rockingham County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the areas of
education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing and homelessness
prevention. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of
poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental contracts. Services are
provided through Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation
The Organization prepares its combined financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which involves the application of
accrual accounting; and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other
liabilities. The financial statement presentation follows the recommendation of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-For-
Profil Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Proftt Entities. Under
ASU 2016-14, net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the board of directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors,
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions
to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization has no net assets with donor restrictions at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Combined Financial Statements

All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic combined
financial statements. The combined financial statements include the accounts of SNHS

Management Corporation because Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. controls more than 50%
of the voting power.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the combined statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all
unrestricted highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Current Vulnerabilities Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions located in New
Hampshire and Maine. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization
(FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution. In addition, on October 2, 2008, the Organization
entered into an agreement with its principal banking partner to collaleralize deposits in excess of the
FDIC insurance limitation on some accounts. The balances, at times, may exceed amounts covered
by the FDIC and collateralization agreements. It is the opinion of management that there is no
significant risk with respect to these deposits at either July 31, 2019 or 2018.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Receivables are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting
primarily based on reimbursable contracts, grants and agreements. Balances outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to bad debt
expense and a credit to the applicable accounts receivable. Management does not believe an
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is necessary at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Revenue Recognition
The Organization's revenue is recognized primarily from federal and state grants and contracts
generally structured as reimbursed contracts for services and therefore revenue is recognized based
on when their individual allowable budgeted expenditures occur. Refundable advances result from
unexpended balances from these exchange transactions. Federal and state grant revenue comprised
approximately 91% and 90% of total revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Contributions and In-Kind Donations

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor
restrictions, if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions,
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the combined statements of

activities as net assets released from restrictions. In-kind revenues and expenses represent fair
market value of volunteer services and non-paid goods which were donated to the Organization
during the current fiscal year. All in-kind revenues in the fiscal year 2019 and 2018 were generated
through the Head Start and Economic Workforce Development programs. Since the recognition
criteria is not met, no in-kind revenues are recognized as contributions in the combined financial
statements and the in-kind expenses have been eliminated.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,2QI9AND20I8

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values
and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the combined statements of financial

position. Unrealized gains and losses are included In the change in net assets in the accompanying
combined statements of activities.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets acquired by the Organization are capitalized at cost if purchased or fair value if
donated. It Is the Organization's policy to capitalize expenditures for these items in excess of
$5,000. Major additions and renewals are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which range from three to forty years. Depreciation expense for July 31, 2019 and
2018 was $499,974 and $427,069, respectively.

Fixed assets purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program
for which they were purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, the various
funding sources have a reversionary interest in the fixed assets purchased with grant funds. The
disposition of fixed assets, as well as the ownership of any proceeds is subject to funding source
regulations.

Advertising
The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it serves. The
production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The Organization allocates Its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and
support services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and support services are
allocated directly according to their natural expenditure classification. Other expenses, that are
common to several functions, are allocated by management based on effort. Supporting services are
those related to operating and managing the Organization and its programs on a day-to-day basis.
Supporting services have been sub-classified as follows:

Management and Genera! - includes all activities related to the Organization's internal
management.

Subsequent Events
Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events through February 12, 2020, which
represents the date on which the combined financial statements were available to be issued and
determined that any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure have been
considered in the preparation of these combined financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,2019AND20I8

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.(Continued)

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, the FASB Issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14. Not-for-Profu
Entities (Topic 958): Presentation ofFinancial Statements ofNot-for-Profit Entities. ASU 2016-14
requires significant changes to the financial reporting model of organizations who follow the not-
for-profit reporting model. The changes include reducing the classes of net assets from three to two
- net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. The ASU will also

require changes in the way certain information is aggregated and reported by the Organization,
including required disclosures about liquidity and availability of resources.

The new standard is effective for the Organization's year ending July 31, 2019 and thereafter and
must be applied on a retrospective basis. The Organization adopted the ASU effective August I,
2018. Adoption of the ASU did not result in any reclassifications or restatements of net assets or
changes in net assets.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to clarify the principles for
recognizing revenue and to develop a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards. The core principle of the guidance requires entities to recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The guidance is effective for the Organization's year ending July 31, 2020. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial statements.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB released ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842),. which provides users of
the financial statements a more accurate picture of the assets and the long-term financial obligations
of organizations that lease. The standard is for a dual-model approach; a lessee will account for
most existing capital leases as Type A leases, and most existing operating leases as Type B leases.
Both will be reported on the statement of financial condition of the organization for leases with a
term exceeding 12 months. Lessors will see changes as well, primarily made to align with the
revised model. The guidance is effective for the Organization's year ended July 30, 2022.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial
statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2: RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization, as stipulated in many of the loan agreements associated with the housing projects
included in SNHS Management Corporation, is required to maintain separate accounts and make
monthly deposits into certain restricted reserves for the replacement of property and other
expenditures. In addition, the Organization is required to maintain separate accounts for tenant
security deposits and any surplus cash that may result from annual operations. These accounts are
also not available for operating purposes and generally need additional approval from oversile
agencies before withdrawal and use of these funds can occur.

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuation techniques maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification 820, Fair Value Measuremenis, are described as follows:

Level I: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the organization has
the ability to access at the measurement dale.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such
as:

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets;

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability;

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2
input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Mutual Funds'. Valued at the net asset value of shares held on the last trading day of the
fiscal year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY3L20I9 AND20I8

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets at
fair value as of July 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019

Mutual Funds

f Level n

S8.40S.690

(Level 2) (Level 3)

$. $.

Total

S8.405.690

Mutual Funds

(Level n

^9-085663

2018

(Level 2) (Level 2) Total

NOTE 4: INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments as of July 31:

2019 2018

Fair

Market

Cost Value

Unrealized

Gains Cost

Fair

Market Unrealized

Value Gains

Mutual Funds S8.313.068 S9.Q85.663 $ gg.gS?

The activities of the Organization's investment account are summarized as follows:

Fair Value - Beginning of Year
Dividends and Capital Gains
Sale of Investments

Unrealized Gains

Fair Value - End of Year

2019

S9,085,663

307,794

(1,000,000)
12.233

S8.4nS.69n

2018

$8,375,305
269,044

441.314

$2mm
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,20!9AND20I8

NOTE 5: AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The Organization's financial assets available for expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date comprise
the following as of July 31, 2019:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Contracts Receivable

Accounts Receivable

Total financial assets available within one year

Total financial assets available within one year

$ 6,986,538

8,405,690

3,488,413

821.565

19.702.206

$19.702.206

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions. Accordingly, all such
funds are available to meet the needs of the Organization in the next 12 months. In addition, the
Organization maintains several reserve funds for property taxes, insurance expenses, and repair and
replacement or emergency needs which are required by financing authorities. These funds may be
withdrawn only with the approval of the financing authority and are not considered by the Organization
to have donor restrictions.

NOTE 6:

The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual operating budgets that
provide sufficient funds for general expenditures in meeting its liabilities and other obligations as
they become due.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt as of July 3
2019 2018

SNHS. Inc.

Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured by real
estate located in Manchester, NH. ' A balloon payment of
$1 1,275 was due on June 30, 2010. Interest is at 0.000%.
SNHS, Inc. is currently negotiating with the City of
Manchester to write off this debt. S 11,275

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Temple St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of $1,833 plus interest through^ 2020. Interest is
at 4.984% and 4.000% at July 31, 2019 and 2018. 238.669

Subtotal $ 249.944

1,275

260.669

$ 271.944
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2019 AND 20i 8

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
2019 20J8

Subtotal Carried Forward $ 249.944 S 271.944

SNHS Management Coq?oration

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located on Pleasant St., Epping, NH,
payable in monthly installments of $1,084 including interest
through 2042. interest is at 3.500%. 200,514 206,400

Mortgage payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low income housing for 30 years.
Interest Is at 10.000%, forgiven annually. 900,000 900,000

Note payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually. 20,000 20,000

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Community Loan
Fund secured by real estate located on. Vine St., Nashua,
NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only if real estate remains
low income housing for 30 years. Interest is at 10.000%,
forgiven annually. 250,000 250,000

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
West Pearl St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only
if real estate remains low income housing for 40 years.
Interest is at 0.000%. 170,000 170,000

Mortgage payable to bank secured by real estate located on
Silver St., Manchester, NH, payable in monthly installments
of $2,619 including interest through 2019. Interest is at
3.750%. - 15,661

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on j
Allds St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of$2,6l3 plus interest through 2021. Interest is
at 4.980% and 4.832% at July 31, 2019 and 2018. 57,487 88,844

Mortgage payable to MH Parsons and Sons Lumber, secured
by real estate located in Derry, NH, payable in monthly
installments of $3,715 including interest through 2031.
Interest is at 5.500%. 396.455 418.612

Subtotal $2.244.400 £2.341.461



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3l,2019AND20i8

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Subtotal Carried Forward

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $3,327 including interest through
2033. Interest is at 7.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Less: Current Portion

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

2019

$2.244,400

358,114

392,924

150.000

3,145,438

109.413

$3.036.025

$  109,413

290,223

50,228

53,206

56,366

2.586.002

S3.145.438

2018

$2.341.461

372,416

392,924

150.000

3,256,801
122.582

SLUi^
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,2019AND20I8

NOTE 7; OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases various facilities and equipment under several operating leases. Total
lease payments for the years ended July 31, 2019 and 2018 equaled $686,840 and $708,379,
respectively. The leases expire at various times through October 2020. Some of the leases contain
renewal options that are contingent upon federal funding and some contain renewal options subject
to renegotiation of lease terms.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for the operating leases as of July
31,2019:

2020

2021

Total

$319,979

33.189

$353.168

NOTES: RETIREMENT BENEFITS

NOTE 9:

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 403(b) plan offering coverage to all of its
employees. Participating employees must contribute at least 1% of their wages, while the
Organization contributes 10% of their wages. The pension expense for the years ended July 31,
20 i 9 and 2018 was $861,928 and $838,296, respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and
local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject to
change by an act of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to
comply with a change.

NOTE 10: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Organization receives contract funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes
specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds.
No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not yet
been determined.

Cotton Mill Square

In 2015, SNHS Management Corporation entered into a contract as part of the Community
Development Investment Tax Credit Program with the Community Development Finance Authority
(CDFA) and was awarded $1,000,000 to provide funding for the development and adaptive reuse of
an abandoned historic cotton mill in downtown Nashua, NH. Under this program, the Project
(Cotton Mill Square) created 109 units of housing and was required to reserve 55 of these units for
low to moderate income households.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,20I9AND 2018

NOTE 10: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES fContinuedl

Cotton Mill Square (Continued)

As stipulated by the contract and after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA, SNHS
Management Corporation entered into a subrecipient agreement with the owners of the Project
(Cotton Mill Square LLC) to provide a promissory note and mortgage of the remaining award
amount of $800,000. The 20 year note to Cotton Mill Square LLC is non-interest bearing and the
principal is forgivable at a rate of 5% each year the Project maintains the required minimum of 55
low to moderate income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occupancy on August 22, 2014 and
remains in full compliance with the required regulations as of July 31, 2019 and 2018. SNHS
Management Corporation feels that it is extremely unlikely that the Project will fall into
noncompiiance in future periods. Therefore, SNHS Management Corporation has not recorded
any contingent receivable or liability related to this transaction. The note repayment is
accelerated if the units fall out of compliance.

In October of 2017, the subrecipient agreement with Cotton Mill Square LLC was amended to
cease the annual 5% debt forgiveness. This modification effectively holds the promissory note
balance at $720,000 which will now be forgiven in full at the end of the agreement as long as the
Project maintains compliance with the original agreement's terms. This modification did not
change the contingent receivable or liability with SNHS Management Corporation.

J. Brown Homestead Property

On July I, 201 1, Rockingham Community Acton (RCA) was acquired by SNHS. As part of this
merger, SNHS assumed all the assets, liabilities and obligations of RCA which included the J.
Brown Homestead Property.

The J. Brown Homestead Property was conveyed to RCA in 1999 by the Town of Raymond for $1
and a mortgage lien of $604,418. The property contains four apartments limited to low-income
seniors, office space for the Outreach operations, space for the Food Pantry operation, and a
common meeting room for use by Town of Raymond organizations. The Town of Raymond
included a requirement that the property be used for a social service center for a period of 20 years,
called the benefit period, after which this requirement terminates.

In the event that SNHS sells or otherwise conveys the property within the benefit period, the
remaining lien will be either paid from the proceeds of the sale or remain with the land to any
subsequent purchaser for the remaining benefit period.

Th'\s mortgage lien has no scheduled principal or interest payments and is forgivable at a rate of 5%
each year of the benefit period until it is completely forgiven in year 2019. The value of this lien at
July 31, 2019 and 2018 is $30,221 and $60,442, respectively. SNHS has no plans to sell or transfer
this property. Therefore, the contingent mortgage Hen liability has not been included in the financial
statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,2019AND2Q18

NOTE 1 1: ACOUISTIONS OF LOW-INCOME HOUSING PROJECTS

During 2017, SNHS Management Corporation acquired SNHS Deerfleld Elderly Housing Limited
Partnership (Sherbume Woods), located in Deerfleld, NH. SNHS Management Corporation
obtained the project operations and assumed all assets, liabilities, debt and equity for the project at
fair market value. The acquisition and allocation of the project was as follows:

Cash $ 256,536

Other Current Assets 3,677

Property and Equipment 1,106,200
Current Liabilities (164,006)
Notes Payable (918,763)
Equity Acquired (Contribution) (283.6441
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, P.A
CliKTIFiRD PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Mark R. Carrier, C.P.A.

Michael R. Dunn, C.RA.

Jonathan A. Hussey, C.RA.. M.S.T.
Steven R. Lamontagne, C.RA.
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INDEPENDENTA UDIFOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA TION

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. (a nonprofit
organization) and affiliate as of and for the years ended July 31, 2019 and 2018, and our report thereon dated
February 12, 2020, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements, appears on
page 1. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of fonning an opinion on the combined financial statements as
a whole.

The combining information in Schedules A and B (pages 24-25), the schedules of revenues and expenses - by
contract (pages 26-30), required by the State of New Hampshire Governor's Office of Strategic initiatives, and the
required schedules and financial information for Whispering Pines il, J.B. Miletle Manor, and Sherbume Woods
(pages 31-50), required by the New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the combined financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the combined financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, Including
comparing and reconciling such Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in ail material respects in relation to the combined financial
statements as a whole.

Ouettette dC Associates, <P.A-
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Schedule A

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICI£S. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I.20I9

SNHS

Management

SNHS, Inc. Corporation Sub-Total Elimination Total

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS I

Cash $ 138.227 S  6.848,311 S 6,986.538 S - S 6.986,538

Investments - 8,405,690 8,405,690 - 8,405,690

Contracts receivable 3,485.878 2.535 3.488.413 - 3.488,413

Accounts receivable - 821,565 821.565 - 821,565

Prepaid expenses 49,279 45,918 95,197 • 95,197

Due from other corporations 3.576.334 (187.656) 3.388.678 (3.388,678) .

Total current assets 7,249.718 15.936.363 23.186.081 (3,388.678) 19.797,403

FIXED ASSETS

l^nd 266,860 2.431.008 2.697.868 2.697,868

Buildings and improvements 1.724,046 10,806.515 12.530.561 12,530.561

Vehicles and equipment 1,091,613 323,658 1,415,271 1.415,271

Total fixed assets 3,082.519 13.561.181 16.643.700 16.643,700

Less - accumulated depreciation 1,371.135 3,866.003 5.237,138 5,237.138

Net fixed assets 1,711,384 9,695,178 11,406,562 11,406,562

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cosh 27.603 383,977 411,580 . 41 1,580

TOTAL ASSETS S 8,988,705 $ 26,015,518 $ 35.004,223 $ (3,388.678) S 31,615,545

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion oflong-term debt $ 33,275 $  76,138 $ 109,413 $ - $ 109,413

Accounts payable 556,554 101,122 657,676 - 657,676

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 160.191 885,614 1.045.805 - 1,045,805

Accrued compensated absences • 359,819 359.819 - 359,819

Accrued other liabilities 134,613 93,090 227,703 - 227,703

Refundable advances 908.744 119,999 1.028.743 - 1,028,743

Over applied overhead 27.739 - 27,739 27,739

Tenant security deposits 26,941 57,290 84,231 - 84,231

Due to other corporations 2,277,364 1,111,314 3,388,678 (3.388,678) -

Total current liabilities 4,125.421 2.804.386 6.929.807 (3.388,678) 3,541,129

LONG-TERISl LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion

l OTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

216.669 2.819.356 3,036.025 3.036.025

5.623.742 (3.388.678) 6.577.154

4.646.615 20.391.776 25.038.391 25.038.391

$  8.988.705 $ 26.015.518 $ 35.004.223 S (3.388.678) $ 31.615.545
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Schedule B

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AI-FILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2019

SNHS

Management

SNHS, Inc. Corporation Sub-Total Elimination Total

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Granl/contraci revenue $  37,485,052 S S  37.485,052 $  (20.438) S 37,464,614

Program service fees 55,802 851.758 907,560 ■
907.560

Local funding •
242,894 242,894

-
242.894

Renlal income • 1.191.372 1.191,372 -
1.191.372

Gifls and coniribuliorrs 192,066 16,662 208,728 - 208.728

Interest Income 169 314.385 314,554
-

314,554

Unrcali'/C(l gain on investments - 12,233 12.233 - 12.233

In-kind 2.248.292 -
2.248.292 (2.248.292)

-

Miscellaneous 561,114 296,218 857,332 (137.208) 720.124

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 40.542,495 2.925,522 43.468,017 (2,405.938) 41,062.079

EXPENSES

Program services;

Child Development 10,883,653 - 10,883,653 (2,293,788) 8,589,865

Community Services 1,562,440 - 1.562,440 (31.766) 1,530.674

Economic and Workforce Dev. 7.028,880 - 7.028,880 (44.196) 6.984.684

Energy 13.442.609 -
13.442,609 (28.328) 13.414.281

Language and Literacy 436.073 •
436,073 -

^ 436,073

Housing and Homeless 263.240 - 263.240 -
263,240

Nutrition and Health 2.535,355 - 2,535.355 (7,860) 2.527,495

Special Projects 1,768.326 - 1,768.326
-

1.768.326

Volunteer Services 125,050 - 125.050 - 125,050

SNHS Management Corporation . 2,396,939 2,396.939 - 2.396,939

Total program services 38,045.626 ' 2,396,939 40.442.565 (2.405,938) 38.036.627

Support services;

Management and gerterol 2.038.463 - 2,038,463 - 2.038,463

TOTAL EXPENSES 40.084.089 2,396,939 42,481,028 (2,405,938) 40.075,090

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 458.406 528,583 986.989
-

986,989

NET ASSETS ■ BEGINNING OF YEAR 4.188.209 19,863,193 24,051.402 24.051,402

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $  4,646,615 $  20,391,776 $ 25,038.391 $  - $ 25.038,391
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

State of NH Governor's OfTice of Strategic Initiatives

Headstart Program

For the Period

August 1.20l8to July31.2019

Fund # 305

REVENUES

Program funding

In-kind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

5,039,103

1,814.481

6,836

6,860,420

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Printing and publications

Depreciation

Assistance to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous

In-kind

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

2,697,294

218,305

780,937

60,479

153,904

17,613

60,852

287,314

2,526

152,726

3,510

14,273

33,563

1,974

4,732

12,114

7,800

75,688

1 1,663

1,814,481

448,672

6,860,420
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Stale of NH Governor's OITice of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

Octoberl,20I8toJuly3l,20l9

Fund #630-18

REVENUES

Program funding

Other revenue

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

9.747.059

32,647

2,351.

9,782,057

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Conference and meetings

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Program support

Depreciation

Assistance to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

373,879

30,932

124,779

1,142

20,174

19,965

6,194

333

44,865

213

20,929

2.026

982

8,025

17,592

228

28,048

5,158

9,010,973

344

830

64,446

9,782,057
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT
I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Slate ofNH Governor's OfTice of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

August 1, 2018 to September 30, 2018

Fund 630-17

REVENUES

Program funding

Total revenue

160,224

160,224

EXPENSES

Payroll 77,917

Payroll taxes 6,149

Fringe benefits 21,229

Workers comp. insurance 241

Retirement benefits 3,615

Consultant and contractual 5,940

Travel and transportation 1,465

Occupancy 10,321

Supplies 4,820

Equip, rentals and maintenance 651

Insurance 71 1

Telephone 1,467

Postage 786

Program support 6,779

Assistance to clients 3,254

Other expense 1,495

Miscellaneous 257

Administrative costs 13,127

Total expenses 160,224

Excess of expenses over revenue
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Stale of NH Governor's Office of Stralegic Initiatives

Early Headstarl Program

For the Period

August l,20l8toJuly3l,2019

Fund M 300

REVENUES

Program funding

In-kind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

.370,247

342,470

3,013

,715,730

EXPENSES

Payroll 716,548

Payroll taxes 57,878

Fringe benefits 168,507

Workers comp. insurance 15,925

Retirement benefits 29,603

Consultant and contractual 3,392

Travel and transportation 7,089

Occupancy 1 12,627

Advertising 876

Supplies 42,1 13

Equip, rentals and maintenance 1,106

Insurance 2,465

Telephone 22,665

Postage 55

Printing and publications 536

Interest 12,995

Depreciation 25,036

Other expense 30,647

Miscellaneous 2,770

In-kind 342,470

Administrative costs 120,427

Total expenses 1,715,730

Excess of expenses over revenue
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Electric Energy Assistance

For the Period

August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2019

Fund # 665

REVENUES

Other revenue

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

716,563

37,230

753,793

EXPENSES

Payroll 399,246

Payroll taxes 32,852

Fringe benefits 102,830

Workers comp. insurance 1,315

Retirement benefits 17,554

Consultant and contractual 24,257

Travel and transportation 4,788

Conference and meetings 333

Occupancy 54,763

Advertising 138

Supplies 23,231

Equip, rentals and maintenance 2,677

Insurance 1,606

Telephone 9,558

Postage 11,355

Subscriptions 228

Depreciation 600

Other expense 344

Miscellaneous 466

Administrative costs 65,652

Total expenses 753,793

Excess of expenses over revenue
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I.20I9AND2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Tenant Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Rental Property

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

6,096

1,734

944

2019 2018

$  18,732 28,635

- 509

6,035 6,035

24,767 35,179

13,294 12,708

30,028 36,414

78,399 76,953

23,456 7,270

4,858 4,758

136,741 125,395

166,600 166,600

580,758 569,400

747,358 736,000

43,447 28,068

703,911 707,932

$  878,713 S  881,214

5,886

2,729

62

8,774 8,677

13,294 12,708

32,103 15,947

194,418 200,514

226,521 216,461

248,589 237,846

630,124 643,368

S  878,713 S  881,214
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WHISPERING PINES 1!

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Other Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

Interest Income - Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Expenses

Total Expenses

2019

S  172,681

2,235

1,470

15

2,490

178,891

50,777

43,570

41,670

15,380

7,130

33,608

20J8

$  172,715

2,215

7,555

30

1,296

83,8

21,821

33,879

63,734

14,316

7,332

33,966

192,135 75,048

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

(13,244)

643,368

8,763

634,605

$  630,124 $ 643,368
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJ EOT No. A199991 -046)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Advertising

Management Fees

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Investment Fee

Legal Expenses

Telephone

Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Utilities

Electricity

Fuel

Water and Sewer

Other Utility Expense

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies

Trash Removal

Snow Removal

Grounds/Landscaping

Elevator Repairs and Contract

Repairs (Materials)

Operation (Contract)

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Depreciation

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Retirement Benefits

Workman's Compensation

Insurance

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

2019 2018

S

14,400

$  8

14,400

20,002 2,209

3,415 126

6,120 -

- 69

3,128 2,973

3,712 2,036

50,777 21,821

19,750 18,406

13,124 7,655

10,214 7,818

482 -

43,570 33,879

692 320

2,160 1,260

10,296 16,710

- 1,150

2,764 2,920

25,758 17,374

- 24,000

41,670 63,734

15,380 14,316

7,130 . 7,332

24,293 28,877

1,612 203

1,871 -

1,064 1 18

4,768 4,768

33,608 33,966

$  192,135 $  175,048
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WHISITiRINC PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECrr OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rcni Subsidy

Tolal Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Opcraiions Receipts

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Tolal Rental Oncralions Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

ARcr Debt Service

$  153.454

19,736

2.235

IS

1,470

49,895

43,570

42,665

7.130

33,608

5,886

i  173.190

176.910

(176,868)

42

(5,844)

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Acent

OvLTier Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reser, es

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Reonvmcnt of Oumer Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

16,156

46.320

55,176

11,359

62,476

66,535

Net Increase or tDecrease) in Project Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Composition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

(9,903)

28.635

18,732

18.732

Pcttv Cttsh

Unrestricted Reserve <if aonlicablel

Decorating Reserve

Operating Rcser\'e
Other Rescivc

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Protect Account Ca.sh

at End of Year J  18,732
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WHISPERING PINES 11 ^
(FORMERLY: EPPFNG SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECTNo. A199991-046)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Income

Tcnanl Paid Rcnl

HAP Rcnl Subsidy

Tolal Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Operations Rccciots

ILsoenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Qocraiions DisbursemenLS

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amorti'/ation of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

After Debt Service

S  153.261

18.975

2.215

30

7.555

20.657

33.879

71,1 19

7,332

33,966

5.684

S  172,236

182.036

(166.953)

15,083

9,399

OTHER RECEinS

Due to Management Aecnt

OtA-ner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Rcnavmcnt of Otsner Advances

Other Panncrshin Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

(26.475)

46,158

38.810

19.300

19,683

58.110

Net Increase or fDccreaseJ in Proiect Account Cash

lYoiect Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Proiect Account Cash Balance at End of Year

(29.028)

57.663

28.635

Comtwsition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year 28.635

i'ettv Cash

Unrestricted Reserve (if aonlicablel

Decorating Reserve
Operating Rcscn'c
Other Reserve

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Proiect Account Cash

at End of Year 28.635
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WHISPERING PINES 11

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 3 L 2019

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

4,758 $ 4,800 $

7,270

36,414

76,953

40,176

10,200

67

302

675

,446

4,767

24,292

17,261

4,858

23,456

30,028

78,399

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $ 125,395 $ 55,176 $ 2,490 $ 46,320 $ 136,74

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31, 2019

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  (13,244)

15,380

5,886

10,200

17,261

$  3,31 1
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2001 243,855 $ 243,855

12/31/2002 $ 243,855 $ $ 487,710

12/31/2003 $ 243.855 $ 5,895 $ 725,670

12/31/2004 S 243,855 $ 7,200 $ 962,325

12/31/2005 $ 243,855 $ $ 1,206,180

12/31/2006 $ 243,855 $ 6,120 $ 1,443,915

12/31/2007 $ 243,855 $ . $ 1,687,770

12/31/2008 $ 243,855 $ . $ 1,931,625

12/31/2009 $ 243,855 $ $ 2,175.480

12/31/2010 $ 243,855 $ $ 2,419,335

I2/3I/20II $ 243,855 $ $ 2,663,190

12/31/2012 $ 243,855 $ $ 2,907,045

12/31/2013 $ 243,855 $ 7,200 $ 3,143,700

12/31/2014 $ 243,855 $ . $ 3,387,555

12/31/2015 $ 243,855 $ . $ 3,631,410

7/31/2016 $ 142,249 $ $ 3,773,659

7/31/2017 $ 243,855 $ $ 4,017,514

7/31/2018 $ 243,855 $ $ 4,261,369

7/31/2019 $ 243,855 S - $ 4,505,224
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I,2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Rental Property

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019 2018

$ 17,001 $  37,774

6,880 8,618

23,881 46,392

15,764 15,755

154,554 138,851

96,431 96,364

6,543 6,538

257,528 241,753

176,000 176,000

1,071,375 1 ,071,375
• 1,247,375 1.247,375

89,879 62,422

1.157,496 1,184,953

s 1,454,669 $  1,488,853

f

$ 1,355 $  3,545

430 282

1,785 3,827

15,781 15,772

45,617 40,657

1,170,000 1,170,000

1,215,617 1,210,657

1,233,183 1,230,256

221,486 258,597

s 1,454,669 $  1,488,853



J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

Interest Income - Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

General Expenses

Total Expenses

20J9

208,237

1,274

IS

175

209,701

71,428

59,196

59,672

27,458

29,058

20JS

207,802

1,228

33

142

209,205

80,209

61,477

34,774

27,009

49,818

246,812 253,287

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

(37,111)

258,597

(44,082)

302,679

$  221,486 $ 258,597
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

{FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP) ■

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Advertising

Management Fees

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Audit and Accounting Expense

Legal Expenses

Telephone

Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Utilities

Electricity

Fuel

Water and Sewer

Other Utility Expense

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies

Trash Removal

Snow Removal

Grounds/Landscaping

Elevator Repairs and Contract

Repairs (Materials)

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Depreciation

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Workman's Compensation

Retirement Benefits

insurance

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

2019 2018

350

17,688

31,953

10,362

400

253

1,431

8,991

71,428

33,814

15,853

8,733

796

59,196

1,726

3,615

4,242

3,100

4,835

42,154

50

17,818

42,606

12,930

800

1,173

1,601

3,231

80,209

39,427.

13,413

7,728

909

61,477

1,605

2,160

3,450

2,204

5,912

19,443

59,672 34,774

27,458 27,009

17,040 34,599

2,613 3,651

1,102 1,866

- 1,283

8,303 8,419

29,058 49,818

$  246,812 S  253,287
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J.B, MILiriTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MIlJiTTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rental OocraUons

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Otjerotions Receipts

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest • Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Operations PisbursemenLs

Cash Provided bv Rental Otxrations

Amortization of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Ottcralions

After Debt Service

$  177,824

30,413

1,274

IS

69,543

59,196

61,862

29,058

S  208,237

209,526

(219,659)

(10,133)

(10.133)

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Agent

Owner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Reoavmcnt of Otvner Advances

Other Parinershio ILxitenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Dertosit Account

4.960

15,600

4,960

15,600

Net Increase or (Decrease) in Project Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Composition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

(20.773)

37,774

17,001

17,001

Pcttv Cash

Unrestricted Rcscr\'c lif annlicablcl

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve

Other Reserve

Total Petlv Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Project Account Cash

at End of Year $  17.001
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J.B. MIUHTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rental Oncnuions

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

EZxocnses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mongage Note

Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Operations DLsbursemcnts

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization oTMortaaEe

Cash Provided bv Rental Oixrations

After Debt Service

$  177,836

29,966

1.228

33

81,918

61,477

34,907

49,818

$  207,802

209,063

(228,120)

(19,057)

(19,057)

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Aeent

Ou-ner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Re.sei^'es

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Rcnavment of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Ex[?enses

Transfers to Tenant Security Dcrwsit Account

(22,427)

15,599

8.975

(21)

(22,427)

24.553

Net Increase or IDecreaseJ in Proiecl Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Comnosition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

(66,037)

103,811

37,774

37,774

Pettv Cash

Unre.stricted Re.servc (ifannlicablc^

Decorating Reserve
Operating Reserve

Other Reserve

Total Pett\' Ca.sh and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Proicet Account Cash

at End of Year $  37,774
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY; J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

$  6,538

138,851

96,364

15,600

5

103

67

6,543

154,554

96,431

Total Restricted Cash

Reser>'es and Escrows $  241,753 $ 15,600 $ 175 $ $  257,528

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY3I,20I9

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  (37,11 1)

27,458

15,600

$  (25,253)
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I,2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Prepaid Expenses

Tola! Current Assets
f

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Rental Property

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion ofMortgage Loan Payable

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019 2018

s 91,630 $  56,958

6,318 6,623

97,948 63,581

15,855 16,600

124,871 1 11,486

67,111 65,873

11,877 9,31 1

3,581 3,802

207,440 190,472

211,000 21 1,000

907,200 895,200

1,118,200 1,106,200

28,775 5,595

1,089,425 1,100,605

s 1,410,668 $  1,371,258

s 15,344 $  14,309

4,240 2,410

194 1 17

19,778 16,836

15,805 16,600

131,432 136,698

885,694 901,031

1,017,126 1,037,729

1,052,709 1,071,165

357,959 300,093

s 1,410,668 S  1,371,258
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 201

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Donation

Other Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

Interest Income - Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Expenses

Total Expenses

2019

260,808

2,640

1,070

56

3,633

268,207

38,625

35,850

55,722

23,180

25,616

31,348

2018

66,083

670

283,644

582

9

677

351,665

1 1,228

6,553

12,698

5,595

6,557

8,941

210,341 51,572

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

57,866

300,093

300,093

$  357,959 $ 300,093
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PSA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 20 i 9 AND THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2018

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Advertising

Management Fees

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Audit and Accounting Expense

Telephone

Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

2019 2018

125

20,872

8,526

3,021

75

2.291

3,715

38,625

4,500

3,417

1,036

925

572

778

1,228

Utilities

Electricity 20,577 4,442

Fuel 8,898 1,334

Water and Sewer 4,597 200

Other Utility Expense 1,778 577

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 35,850 6,553

Maintenance

Trash Removal 1,523 525

Snow Removal 25,123 -

Grounds/Landscaping 292 431

Repairs (Materials) 28,784 1 1,742

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 55,722 12,698

Depreciation 23,180 5,595

Interest - NHHFA Morteaee Note 25,616 6,557

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes 25,184 6,938

Payroll Taxes 714 287

Workman's Compensation 454 182

Retirement benefits 228 342

Insurance 4,768 1,192

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 31,348 8,941

TOTAL EXPENSES S  210,341 S 51,572
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SMERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUStNG LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No, HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERA'HNG ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2019

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rental Operations

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Ooeraiions Receinis

Kxpcnscs

Adminisiralive

Utilities

MaintcnarKe

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Otxralions Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

After Debt Service

S  119.235

141.573

2.640

56

1.070

38.243

35.850

53.892

25.616

31.348

14,302

S  260,808

264.574

184.949)

79,625

65,323

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Aeenl

Ou-ner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Repavmenl of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Securitv Deposit Account

43.443

56,778

12.000

5.266

50

43.443

74.094

Net Increase or fPecreaset in Project Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

34.672

56.958

91.630

Composition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year 91.630

Petty Cash

Unrestricted Reserve (ifapplicablcl

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve
Other Reserve

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Project Account Ca.sh

at End of Year 91.630
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SHERBURNBWOODS

(FORMERLY; SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTNo. HAPPBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2018

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rental Onerations

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest ItKome

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Oncrolions Rcccinls

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest • Other Notes

General

Other

Touil Rental Ot?erations Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Onerations

AmortiTation of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Onerations

Alter Debt Service

S  31.338

34,745

670

582

14.673

6.553

13.836

6,557

8.941

3.423

$  66.083

67.344

(50.560)

16.784

13,361

OTHER RECEIITS

Due to Management Aeent

Owner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Retterves

and ILscrou-s

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Rcpavment of 0\s-ner Advances

Other Partnership Exixnscs

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

(7.046)

13.910

12.881

6.864

12,881

Net Increase or IDecreaset in Proiect Account Cash

Proiect Account Cash Balance at Beainntne of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

7.344

49,614

56,958

Composition of Proiect Account Cash

Balance at End of Year 56.958

Petty Cash

Unrestricted Reserve (il applicable)

Decorating Reserve
Operating Rcsers'c
Other Reserve

Total Pcttv Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Proiect Account Cash

at End of Year 56.958
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PEA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

$  3,802

9,31 1

1 1 1,486

65,873

4,500

29,028

23,250

46 $ 4,767 $ 3,581

214 26,676 1 1,877

2,135

1,238

12,000 124,871

67,1 11

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $ 190,472 $ 56,778 $ 3,633 $ 43,443 $ 207,440

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31, 2019

NET INCOME

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

57,866

23,180

14,302

23,250

12,000

$  55,494
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2003 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 113,850

12/31/2004 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 227,700

12/31/2005 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 341,550

12/31/2006 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 455,400

12/31/2007 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 569,250

12/31/2008 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 683,100

12/31/2009 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 796,950

12/31/2010 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 910,800

12/31/2011 $ 1 13,850 $ .$

1

1,024,650

12/31/2012 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,138,500

I2/3I/20I3 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,252,350

12/31/2014 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,366,200

12/31/2015 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,480,050

12/30/2016 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,593,900

12/30/2017 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,707,750

7/3I/20I8 $ 66,413 $ $ 1,774,163

7/31/2019 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,888,013
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SOUTHERN New HAMPSHIRE services
PO-Bdx 5040i Manctiiester, NH 03108 - (603)668H5,010

The Community:Adion Partnership ̂  HHIsb<^pugh and Rock!hgha0IC^
B.OARD OF'DIREGTORS ~ as of-^eptiBmber 2020

4

PubncSector, PriYate Sector Low^lncome Sector MS Policy Council
Reoreseriti n a. Ma hchester^ Rebfeientiha Manchester Represehtinq'Manchester
Lou D'All^andfb yi^ Chair, Peter Ramsey James Brovvn Alicia Webber

TerTri:4/^8-r^J: 9/18r9/21, term begins-ll/19
Toni Pappas

Carrle;:MarsHall Gross Prvillo KeiT, Sec^aiV

Temi; '9/2(^.9/23. Term.9/18r9/21

Anna Hamel

Reoresentina Nashua ReDfesehtlha Nashua; Term,Expires Sept. 2022'
Kevin Mbrlarty Treasurer Dolores; Beilavancej Chairman'.

Term:. [9/18-9/21 Reoresehtinq Nashua

Bonnie Henaujt
Teirm:. 9/17-9/211

Shirley Pelletief
Reoresehtlha Towns Reoresentlna Towns Term:' 9/J7-9/2T

Thomas Miillins German J. Ortiz

Term: 9/26-9723 Reoresentino Tbvms.

Reoresentlnb Rockmqham Countv Reoresentino Rockinqham Cburitv

Rep, Shemian Packard

ReDresehtihd Rockinqham Countv



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

The Community.Action.Partnership serving Hlllsborough and Rockingham Gquntles

Mailing Address: PO'B~ox5040, ManGhester>.NH 03108
40 Pine-Street, Manchester, NH 03013:

Telephone: (603) 668t8P10 ;FAX: (603);645-67-34-

SEAS PY21.

List bf-Key.'AdmihlstratlveRiefsohnel.

Title Name AnnuaFSajary. Percentage- AmoCiht

Executive Director Donnalee Lozeau Sl90;649 0.00% 0

DeputyDife'ctor Ryan Clbuthler $l'15i606 0.00%' 0

Chief FihandarOfflcer Jarnes, Chalsspn $1-2S,62P Q;po%: 0-



:do:nnalee lQzeau

Gommunity and
Civic Invplyenieht-
Current

•' NH Community Action
Partriefshlp.

•  HB4CIiff Effect^Wbrking.Group,
Co-chair

•  Governor's Office for

Enielgen^'Reliefi arid'
.Recqyei^lStakehblders
Advispryeoard, Chair,

• whole (:atpJly.;Approac.h'tp Jobs
tJrt ChapteriCp-chair

•  St;. Joseph Hpspitai Board of
Directors-

•  St. Maiys Bank-Supervisory
Committee; Chair

•  Nht Healthy Fanriiiies,Board of'
Difectbrs

•  Maiys. House. Advisory Board
•. The'Plus Company
•  NHTombmowXeadersh'ip

Cblihdl

•  EagleLScbutBoardiof Review
•  American Council of Young

Political Lea'dere. Alumni
(Member

Cdmrhuhity and
Civic Invblvementr

Past

Reaching.Higher NH
NH^C^ht'erfofPubllc Policies
Siudies^
Goyernbr's JUdicraKSelectibh
C^missipn
Big brothers Blg. Sistere R^
Directors; Ras}^Presideht
Statewide Wprkfbr Innpyalipn
Board

G'reater Nashua Dental
Connection BOD, Founding
Member'

Great American.Downtown,
Fduridirig' Member
Dbmestjc VloienceCoordinatlng;
Couh'cll Nashua

USjCoriference of Mayors
No Labels

Fix the'Debt

Experience

Southern New HarripsNife'Servlces.'lhc.
Manchester, NH,
(January 2016-PVesent)

^Executive Director/CEO

•  Development and oversight of Comrnunity Actipn-Partnenship;
serving NH!s two largest counties- Hlllsborpugh and
Rockirigham.

•  Cbbperatiori and engagement:with Ibcal. state end.'federai
agencies and o'rganlzatibris o'ri Issues.ancliprograms Jhat
Iritereect with ̂ e Cpmrriuhity Action Mission

• Work ,to fundamentally enhance the delivery ofiservice to
targeted co.mmunUy to wrap service's arpuhd clierits and
-s'treamiine the-appl.icatiqiYprpce.ss by Implementirig^the VVhble
Fam ily Approach

City of Nashua, New Hampshire
(2008^2(316)-Ejected

Mayor
•  ;Full'tlme o\^rall.day tb;.day'managem

largest'city lnthe^feof;NH'|Mth^^^ arid
implementation of'$245 mtnion:dpjjar,(20i 6) annual budget;

"• -Worked vnttiyelectbd bo.afds .lndodirig Board of Aldermen;
Rubllc,Wprt<s;;Bbafd,bf-Educatjon and-cthers toprioritize and
balance budget requirem;ents:and th.e,needs'of.(he cbmmuhity

•, Chaired Board of public;Works and the;Finance''Committee

•  Successfully negotiated,The'.City's:purchase of the publicly
^ded vy^ter cpmpany(Pehnlchuck) after;a:pfoldnged case
before the NHPUG'and the,NH Supreme-Court

Southern New Hampshire Sery.ices, Iric.
(1993-.2bb8j.;Manchester;

Director of.Program and Community beveloprneht:

•  ASsessed.the heed-fof seryipeSithfpughbut Hillsborough
County through cpmmunlty outreach^
partnerships;.collaboraiions-and new.lnitiatiyes'with;serylce■
proyide^s,and bus[riesses

•' Negotiated purchases and contractS:and presented.prpject^
tefbre Ideal boards, cbmriiissibhsahd departmentis relative to'
housing,pdpport,services,a'nd.ecphbthicidevelopment

•  Designed and implemented;strategies for developing
wbrkingYelatibriships with town ahd city officials; local
s'eryicepfbvidere and appropriate pw sector officials In
order.to projectP.'ppsitJve im'age,\Pf SputherhNew
Hampshire.Services; (no,

•  FoundediMatyfs-Hpuse 40;,uriits;bf;housing for homeless
wpnien arid deyeibped 219 units of.Elderly-Housing

•  Pibheefed initiatives for the:,eommunity Corrections and
Academy Program's

•  Expanded Head Start Services and developed the program
arid secured the site for Economic Opportunity Center



DON NALEE LGIEAU
GONTINUEO.

ep^mmUnity and
Giyic Invplvement-

Past

•  NH Center focPublic.Policy
.Studiesi

•  Greater:.Nasfiua Gharriber'of'
•  Gbmmerde. Director

-• GreatierNashua Woh^force

Housing epalitipri,
Fbunding Member

•  .GreaterNashua-Asset

Buiidjng CPalit[pn>
Fbunding Member

•  New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation

State!Bbard, Member

Education and

training
•  CCAP, Certified Comrhuhlty,

i^ctibn Professlorial

•• GGAP Proctor

•  RivierCpllege; Nashua-
Undergraduajevyork in
Poiitical Science

•  ResfeuraptManpgem
Institute

•  IMedlatipnprid ̂
Oispute'Resdlutibh training

'• Leadership Institutei Aspen
•  Justice of the Peace'

NH State Representative, Hillsborbugh County, District 30
(1984.-2000)

Deputy.Speakcrof the NH House-Pf. Representatives
(1996-4000)

•  Addressed constituent',concerns

•  Assisted Non-Profit prgariizatibns arid local businesses
with govemrnental concerns and^steerlng legislation
through the;politicai process by working ,with rriem'bei^
and teadership.in theiNH House,of Representatlves-and
the NH Seriate'ahd rep'resehfetlves oLthe Executive
arid.. Judicial branches'

•  Managedifloor.debates and supervised House Cefendar
content

•  Responslble:for functions of the House on.behalf oforlrrthe
absence-of the Speaker

Comrnittee Assignments:;
Hpuse-Ruies C.ommitW^^^ Chairmari

■. House Legislative Administration Gp.mmittee
•  Joint Facilities Committee.
•  New^MemberOrieritatibri.,Chair
■  House Gprrectipns ahP.pnmihal.Justice Cbmrhittee,

Vice Ghajrman,
•  House Judiciary Committee.
■  CriminaUusticeSubreommittee. Chairman
■  '.StateandiFederai^Relations Gomrriittee

Appointments:
;• Joint Legislative Performance Auditpnd Oversight,

Committee
•• Juvenile Justice Cbmrriissibn, Chairman
• ■ .Supreme" Cbiirt Gualrdian^AdiUterTi:Pomn1itt8e
"  Superipi: ePuri.Aitemaliye;pJ.spute;Res6luW^

^mmlttee;
• Wort< Force^p'ppprtjnity-^C^
■  ilnterbranch Criminal and,Juvenile Justice Council

p Subcbmrrilttee.oh Offenders, Chairman
.0 Spa'ce'and Pnsbh'Pi^rammirig
p  Juveniles Suteommjttee,.C<>

National donference of S^^ LeglsiaturesLaw.ahd
JusUce..Vice Chair

•  Cduncll of State Govemments: Intergovernmental
Affairsi.Cbrfectibns^'ahd Public Safety

city Streets:RestaurantV(J .98^6-1^^
Cityj'Streetsiblner,(200.6-'2dW
Co-Owner/Qperator

•. Operated'450 seat'restaurarit and banquet facility and
effectively;managed,financial.!accburits,.staff'and
licensing requlrem.eh^ts
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V

CLOUTKIER

OBJECTIVE

Swlcin'gii'JeadtTCh'ip'rdlc wbic^^ theipppprtunily tp utilizc and;build'upon ray;,knowle<JgC:and
passibn for Uie work performed by Comrnunity, Action Agisnclcsijii tiic isiate pf New^Hamp^'ire.lwhile af^
s^b'tirne beingithe supporl and strength forthe Communities we serve.

EXPERIENCE

Depu'ty.Director} Southern-New Hampshire Semces Inc.
FEB.2018-PRESENT

Sf^ngas pariofithe Ex^dve'ManagcmentTeani'ftndis'rcsponsibleforpro\nding inspiring:leadersliip tp.thc
Sputhern.Nevi''Hampshire Services (SNHS) s(mipr mmagemeiit;tea"ni.and d^plopin^^^ p'erformancc culture.tb
•ensure the eff^ivemanagementiofa compr^cnsivc anay ofover sixty prbpams.^Thc•pcR■uQ'^Di^tw^ tie
the yanp'us;^cpm'f^ including; nutrition; hpusingjienergy; workforce developmcot;Mocome'
enhancement; education; Md elderly seryicM to the agCTcy, tbiMc^.pthe^ tindTo thclgeh^l communityj.by
prpmpting'.and.communicatihg the mission of Community Action. ln.conjuncti6h;«ritii'the' Ex6cutivc;Difectpr
and Fi^l OfficCT Peifuty W^orproyidcs thc_stmyardship of SNHS b)^ being actiycly:invoi\^ wi&.the
agency's hi^-p«pformance scnior.Icadership'team'in the deyclopm^eht, implementation, and management of the
program content,ta-wcll as annual budgets. Rcsponsibic for/ensuring that services and'prpgrams provi^bd fulfill
the agcncy's,missioh,W compli^M.wiiK allTt^era funding imd city regulations;'certifications,
and'licensing requircments.

Energy and Housing Opcratiohs I)ii;ec(br | Sbuthcrh New Hampshire';Scn'rces Inc.
•2016 - 2018 "
Responsible for-providing,the various SNHS Encrgy.and Crisis,programs, Irifcrmation Technology, Hdiisihg.'wd
MaintCTancc^pnfgra^ vision,Md leadciship..R«pdnsible fpr,the:prannirig,rimpleracntatibnj and
evaluation of all foccts.'of.fiscal and program management^ eff(xtivcness whilejpiiovndmgV^.^
pf.(he:p.rbgram's.,^mmistration and day-to-day management, includihg'budget management, grant-writing and
purt^Ming.: 'Also r«Rp'nsiBje fofmaintairiiriga wbrkingmlatibhship withgo^ officials, local boar^
and agencies in developing andmanaging ihe programs. In cohjunctiba with the-Executi^
Officer thisi^ilibns'pro.i^^ stewardship ofSNHS by being actively involved withthc agency's fii^-
performance seniprlMderthip team in^the deyelppraCTti implemcntatibh, and nian^emenfofiprpgram content as
'wcll.as:armual budgets; Rtsponsiblc^for ensuring that sendees and;pr6groms'provided'ftifi!i'^c agency's;
'rnissidn'Md-^ih-cbrnplianM^ state, funding,-city,certifications, and'iicensing requirements.':
Energy.Dircctor [ Sbuthcm.New Hampshire Services Inc.

.2013-.2016;
•'Responsible forcbbititnatipnjJmplcmCTtat oyeralfwpervision and roanagemcntof the Fuel and
Electric'Assistance;piogramSj;Crisis-Prog^ Weathcnr^ion l^grani;.]^ Pfogfam, and
■Youth.Build'Pro^;^ for.Hillsborpugh.and RockinghamJCounties- Develop antl Maintain-rclationships with
Ti^cral, stale'and local grMtors;.lnteivcne bn behalf of the Comtnunily Acliori pertaining tp the.Gorc Utility
Weathcrization Energy.EfCcicncy Programs. Maintains a strong working relationshjF«T^^ G^A, NH.Ue^l,
:^js^;cc, Office of Suatcp Initiative, DOE,,Ubcrty Utilities, Eversoutoc, NHEG,.Unitil,,NHHFA, NReL,
Apprise and other local non-profit and priyate'coinRwies ib. thc jndu^ Participates;in,multiple,Hcalthy Home
s^te^c plaonihg;committees.
Weathcrization^Director i SbutKem New Hampshire Services Inc.
2006-2013"
Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting,.overall supervision and managemcDt ofthe'.
Weathcrizatibn; Iicad/AbatOTeri(; and.YouihBuild Proems focHillsborough and.Rockingham.^unlies.
Devdbpcdiand.Maintain rclaiionstiips with federal, state and.|oca| gyantbrsOlntewehe^ bii bchalf.of the
Cbmmunity 'Actib^ during the, merge of Liberty, Energy and National .Grid Gas along with'filihgs
pertaining lo the Core Energy' Efficicm Programs. Develop^ surbng working relationships with'OCA, NH



Legal•AssistMCc,:6fficc'of Energy and Planning^' DOE, Liberty Energy, Evcrsource,.NHEC; Unitiii
'NREL, Apprisc.and other.ibcal non-profit and private companies in the industp'. Served.on the Department of"
EhCTgy;s{^cial,tBsk./ofce to'impie'mCTl a Naiiq^^^ B«t Practices Manual for fTA/^A for.
Weathcrization Energy. Auditor Certification. Participated in a "One Touch" pilot effort which tecame a
istm^ide practice, an'dlhasreceivfsdinatibna) recognition

Energy. Auditor I'Southcrn New Hampsliire,Services Inc.
.2004 ̂ 2006

Responsible for pofonnj auditiof jpw iriwrn^^ prop(^'cs;,recofd^
and computerized formats io detennine cost effectiveness of conservation measures-needed; gendete .work order
^ecs for-tbe.contrac'tors. '.Conduct proper follow through and field inspections to.assure quality^mstallatioos and
client satisfaction'.-.

,Netw.ork'Ahalys.t i.Gebuily
i2604 - 2606
Rcsponsible.for monitoring thc'Genuity Dial up network supporting AOL.Domestic andiLbtcmafionai subscribers
iincludihg Japan, USA ud,Canada. Re^dnsibilUies include isdlating-wd u-publeshboting problems/outages^^^
configuration issues, on difterem types ol"Cisco routers; Lucent APX's, MAX's. and NortcljCyX's.
Troubleshooting consists of isdlaling.probIcms:throu^ hcad.idhcad testing with diffcrciit .Tclco's.- Also
resppnsible;Tof'creatihg,itrbuW and closing fickets.jn a group li piieue. Dcmpostrali^.jstfenglhs
in theiareas of interpersonal skills and negotiation.

EDUWiON

2000' NH.Cpmmunity'Technical.College
I994-1998:. 'Dover High School
O/Aer - Weatherizaiion wnften and.ficld certification, Dcpariracnt of Energy ̂ aliiy Gontrol inspector
CcrtificatiotLjniulriplenj^^^ arid regional [weathcnzafiph b«t.prac.lic« trainings.; InSo jp eisco;routers, ,T1 )and

d«ign and troublcshootihg'trainin'g,-ATM and Kramc Relay network dcsign'treinihg,-LAN;andiWAN|
training, bC3, OU48;.anB!Oei92 design and troublcshooting:training,.BPI Energy-Analyst L^.contractor
abat^eht Cerlifiirati6n,,RRR c^in.catjoh, OSHA 30 hour wbrker.sa'fety,-E>pE L^d.S^c'WrathCTizatioh
certification.

SKILLS

•  .Problcm'solving
•  'New/Dusini^.'bcyciopracbl
•  SpoiaLMcdi.a

'.Pub|ic.Spe'aki.ng;

'Data Analysis/Analytical thinking
Stratcpc.Rlanning
OperaitioDS; Management
.Conpact Negotiations-
'TMrn^and Relatidnship'b^

' PI aihn ihg. wd .fbra^ti hg

Budget^and finandai management-
Leaden^jp
Cpmmuhity Assessment.

CpmputCTskills'spwific Ib.job includei
.mEAT, NEAT, OTTER, FAP/EAP
_Microspft'365i T^owCTPpint; Oiitlopk;
Wpj^ E*9^^ W®Ei.^{WwOR{jm^ GSST
Md.manyoUjcrs that;C/n"bc^beneficial.

ACTiViTIES/AGiGPMPLlSHME
•  Nuoiwotts Ri^ aW.clM.rclatW to.Weathdizaiibhjhc|udihg visits from'.thc.Assist^^

■Efficiehcy'frorri the.'pejwitmen and Vice Pfcsi.dCTt Joe BidCT.
•  Member of..thc..Glty of Nashua Healthy Homes^Strategic Plahhihg-Committcc,.
•  Member of the City of ManPhcstcrHealthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
•; .Union Leader.40 under.40 Class'.of.-20]S.
•  Vice President oftihc,Neighbor helping-Neighbor Board.
•: Member of,the Energy Ef^flciciicy and.Sustainabic Energy Board.
•- 'Mmbcf pfthe Residential Ratep'aycrs Advisory Board.



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting p,rofessipnaTwlth;8.;Y,ears ofnonrpfofit experience,and dyer 20 years ofbroad

experience In tTianufacturIng, dlstri,buX}oni;reorganlzatlons, m and acquisitions; sal.es/bpe'ratidns
planning/forecasting and establiishlng &'rnpnltoring perfprmance:metrlcs:in a mariufacturing cnylrdnment.
Experienced in private-and public corppratlops;'including 8 years In .a private equity environrri'ent with .a'strong
focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity management, Cornplete knowledge,of P&L, balance,

-sheet, cash flow and coist accounting'., Pfd.vehiskills at staff leadership, training and develppment'l.n a. team
environment. Professional.Experience;

•  Fiscal .Officer in nohpfofitbfganizatlbh

•  Cohtfdilef In MF.G & Dl^ribution;

•  Treasury and Cashi'Flow Management

•  Financial &'Capital-Budgetingi Repprting &'Gbntrpl

Cost:Accounting Manager

r General Accounting Manager

»  Business Performance Metric Estabirshment^and Meas.urement

PROFESSIPNAL EXPEIRENGE

Southern: New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH 5/2Cto?-Present
Sputhefn New Harnpshife''S.en/ices (SNHS) is?a ndhTprofit entity dedicated toihelpir^g' people help themselves:
SNHS a_ccpmpli.sh"es this tH/ough;a"varietyof'pr6grams.bffered af centers, offices; clinics, and'lntake;sjghts
Ipcated throughput Rpckingham' and H.li.lsb.ofbughxoljntlei- The ageriCy also oversees 29:houslng facilities
with .apprpxi.m,ately lpO,p tenants. SN'HS receiy,es:and-administe"rs $36 miilibn in prbgfam funds^annuaNy vy.ith
over-450 employees.

Chief Fiscal Officer ,1/2017 tb;Preserit
•. Oversee;financia'l and accou.riting compliance;:,maJ.ntaini.ng controls and managing p.btehtial business

risks

Manage the'annual-budget prpcess^andianalysls actiyities
Prepare-presentatipn for Board pf'pjrectprs meetings presenting the. organization's fina'ncial'fesults
Develop and maintalh;bankjng;relatipnshfpS;
Managethe Annual. Audlt:prpcess

SeniorAccouhtont 5/2009-1/2017
Awisted Fiscal Director ih-bverseetngfall OscaJ and'finanGlal aGtivltles.'ihcjudmg;cpmpiiance with fedefali'state;
and fundingsburcerequlfements as welfas accordance with <3AAP

•  Develbped.iand'lrhpiemented'indi'rect cost caiculation.and interfaced with;G,enerai Ledger'
•• Monitored ahd'pfeparedvrnpnthly budgetys act.u.al reporting; recommended adjustmentisrahd forecast

spending

,» Created''speciallzed.reportsffpr the;ind|y[dual grant's reporting requirements
o  Oesigned'aliocatibn'methods for prpperiy biljing shared Items"to indiyldual grants and programs
"  Prepared monthly agencyprograrn reylevys for Fis.cal Directof's B.bafd.-Qf plrectors-review



James Chaisson

WOOD STRUCTURES; INC., Biddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, is a highiv leveraged business owned;by Roark:Gapital,=3 privateiegultyTuhd, headquartered in Atlanta,
GA. WSI iS:3 $70 rriillion manufacturer of roof and floor trusses, wall panels.and;a distributor ofengiheefed
wood products. The tpmpariy's products .are,-sold into,the f.esidentiaiahdlight'cpmrnercia'l.cdhstruetibn'
markets

.Controller 2006-4/2069
Managed all aspects,of accountjng and reportl,ng;in a truss manufacturing plant.as well as an engineered wood
products di^ributibn locatlon that included2^locations in Maine and 1 in Massachusefts.
•  Calculated and assisted in the managemen't- of the company's.covenants

• Worked ciosely with senior rnanagement;d'ur|rig the sale process from the seller (Harb.qur Group) and
buyer>(Roark .Capital)

•  Identified costdrivers and Implemented process changes.to;reduce the monthly clpsing cyele from 18
to 5'days

•  Conducted monthly reviews with'the rhanagersun fihanciat results and measurement
•  Oversaw the:payroll function of-l'60+employees

Accounting Manager 2001-2006

Recruited:to coimpany-to festdrefinanGial c6htf6is;ahd establishdest pfac^ cohcerhihg.both general lediger
and cort.accounting.'pfocesses. iResponsible for bverseelrig the acco.unting'o/ 2 lpcations;lh' Maihe arid l-'ih-
•Ala'b'arna,. '

•  Established the reportihg.protbcoisd.fthe company us.ed.by both equity sponsors
•  Educated, motivated arid developed a staff of 3'to':Succeedjri their roils of financiaTrespbrisibility
•  Ideritlfled arid Irripiemerited pfocesses'ahd;prdcedufes fbf;all Intercompariy sale's, t'rari^efs,

"consolidation and eJimlnationS:

•  Streamiined the, payrpli process that:,ihcl.uded transferring to:an'.e>rternai supplier (ADPj, .which/reduced
cost by 0%

•  Conducted physicarinyen.torl.es arid dejfiried.tffelr policies and procedure at all Ipcations.

VISHAY SPRAGUE, Sanfofd, ME 1978^2001

yishaySprague.is a divisipn of Vishay. intertechnplogY inc (NYSEL VSH) a global manufacturer of discrete;
semiconductors^and'passlve-eiectronicxomponehts. TherSprague Oivlsiori. mariufactures solid tantalum

xapacitoris.with-arinual.saies of ̂$200 million-arid,1}4.00 employees.

Plant Cost Accounting Manager 1997-2001

Division General Accountina.li/ldhd'aer 1995-1997
Division Ooeration Accountant 1989-1995

Division Fixed Asset Accountant 1987-1989

fvlaster Enoineerina Technician 1984-1987

Lpad Produciioh.Technicidh 1978-i9.S4

EDUCATION.

NASSON COLLEGER, Sprihgvale, ME

B.S. in Business.Administration
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